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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Since wrote to you year ago the profound disruption of the global

economy has required businesses to manage through unprecedented

levels of challenge and change Against this backdrop Diamond effectively

developed and executed strategies that generated value for our shareholders

clients and people Reflecting on our progress in fiscal 2010 believe

we were at strategic advantage because the very foundation of our

business is helping world-class clients navigate change spur innovation

drive growth and improve profitability We are proud of our results yet more

importantly we view this years accomplishments as an inflection

pointthe beginning of promising phase in Diamonds history

SHAREHOLDER FOCUS STRATEGY EXECUTED VALUE REAUZED

In fiscal 2010 we remained dedicated to our positioning as management

consulting firm that specializes in technology We continued to develop our

people and their skills enhanced our industry expertise refined our service

lines and stayed at the forefront of important issues to deliver value to our

clients We strengthened our client relationships and continued to deliver

high-quality and high-impact client work which is ultimately the most

critical element of our strategy In addition we improved both our cost and

capital structures while making investments in our business related to

marketing service lines and training As result we emerged from fiscal

2010 well positioned for continued success

Demand for our services continued to strengthen throughout the year

and we delivered four sequential quarters of growth Diamond finished

fiscal 2010 ahead of expectations generating $177.2 million in revenue

$1 5.8 million in pretax income earnings of $0.44 per share and

$21.1 million in free cash flow In addition we delivered improvements

across our key operating metrics including revenue growth revenue per

consultant chargeability profitability days receivables outstanding and free

cash flow We repurchased $4.9 million in stock and have remaining

authorization of over $22 million Owing to our performance Diamonds

stock outperformed the major indices and delivered 219% total

shareholder return over the course of the fiscal year

With stabilized pipeline improved visibility and increased confidence in our

business we announced 29% dividend increase and returned to providing

annual guidance in May 2010 after three-year hiatus Looking ahead we

are projecting fiscal 2011 to be year of continuing revenue and earnings

growth for Diamond

Adam Gutstein President and CEO



CLIENT FOCUS STRATEGY EXECUTED VALUE REALIZED

Diamond is more diversified than ever within our clients organizations

working in multiple divisions and on multiple projects simultaneously Senior

executives at top-tier companies continue to choose Diamond for objective

advice on business and technology and for counsel on both strategy and

execution Diamond consistently helps clients plan and execute strategies

that realize value whether we are working with the chief information officer

of major airline to capture more than $1 billion in incremental revenue or

with the chief strategy officer of multinational consumer packaged goods

company to identify over $100 million in annual revenue through successful

social media strategies

In addition to helping clients achieve meaningful returns on their investments

and improve their operating performance we are often one of our clients

most trusted advisors In fiscal 2010 the length of our average relationship

grew to more than three years the highest in company history and our top

10 clients have been with us an average of over six years

PEOPLE FOCUS STRATEGY EXECUTED VALUE REALIZED

The caliber and commitment of Diamonds people are integral to the value

we deliver to our shareholders and clients Our strategy of recruiting top

talent from premier universities and seasoned veterans with diverse

backgrounds and skill sets is just part of the equation We maintain rigorous

focus on nurturing the consulting business and technology capabilities

of our people through training and professional development We provide

aifractive career paths and foster shared drive to make Diamond truly

outstanding global company From compensation perspective we shifted

from primarily equity-based variable compensation to performance-driven

cash bonus awards in fiscal 2010 to ensure we continue to retain our

coveted staff and balance shareholder interests appropriately

This commitment to our people has resulted in noteworthy achievements

We concluded the fiscal year with an 11% voluntary employee attrition

rate our third consecutive year of improvement and generally lower than

the rates of our peers Diamond has continued to execute successful

recruiting campaigns adding talented candidates who join Diamond to realize

their career objectives During the past fiscal year we welcomed 161 new

colleagues to help meet our clients needs and we intend to recruit at least as

many in the coming year given the increasing demand for our services



DIAMONDS ROLE IN THE FUTURE

The fast-paced evolution of technology requires companies to persistently

seek new ways of strengthening and shaping their competitive edge Cloud

computing emerging mobile technologies and social media for example hold

intriguing possibilities yet each requires appropriate diligence to ensure prudent

investment While corporate leaders must focus on creating innovative products

and services and integrating new technologies they must also make targeted

strategic investments in their operations The ongoing convergence of business

and technology strategies improves the value equation for technology investments

and ultimately creates opportunities for Diamond as well as our clients

Demand within the consulting industry is driven by change and the business

world is in significant flux even beyond the effects of the downturn Globalization

regulatory change industry consolidation and the ever-developing possibilities

offered by technology are some of the forces expected to drive demand for our

services The paralysis that took hold of the global economy year ago has

passed but there is no doubt great deal of uncertainty remains Economies

around the world face many challenges but we feel that Diamond is well

positioned for future growth We intend to realize our potential by maintaining

and developing new client relationships aifracting and investing in the very

best people expanding into new geographies broadening our industry focus

and refining our service lines This is the strategy that enabled us to deliver

exceptional fiscal 2010 results and we expect it to continue to serve us well

as we move forward

In closing Id like to thank our shareholders for your confidence in Diamond

our clients for their support and our people for their dedication in making us the

outstanding firm we are today look forward to writing you all again next year

Adam Gutstein President CEO

June 2010
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PART

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of

Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act relating to our operations results

of operations and other matters that are based on our current expectations estimates and projections based on

information currently available to us and we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements

Words such as expects intends plans projects believes estimates and similar expressions are

used to identify these forward-looking statements These statements are not guarantees of future performance

and involve risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict Forward-looking statements are based upon

assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate Actual outcomes and results may differ

materially from what is expressed or forecast in these forward-looking statements For discussion of some of

the risk and uncertainties that could cause actual outcomes and results to materially differ please see the

section below entitled Risk Factors

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K we use the terms Diamond we our Company the

Company our and us to refer to Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc formerly

DiamondCluster International Inc from November 2000 through August 2006 and Diamond Technology

Partners Incorporated from its founding in 1994 through November 2000 and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

All references to years unless otherwise noted refer to our fiscal year which ends March 31

Item Business

Overview

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc is Delaware corporation formed in 1996 and is

the parent of three subsidiaries Diamond commenced its business in 1994 as management and technology

consulting firm We help leading organizations worldwide to understand and leverage information infor

mation analytics and information technology to realize value in their businesses Recognizing that infor

mation and technology increasingly shape market dynamics and corporate performance Diamonds small

teams of experts work across functional and organizational boundaries to improve growth and profitability

Since the greatest value in strategy and its highest risk resides in its implementation Diamond also

provides proven execution capabilities Diamond intends to deliver three critical elements to every project

fact-based objectivity spirited collaboration and sustainable results

Our firm offers our clients skills in strategy information technology operations and program man

agement to help companies improve operations increase flexibility reduce costs address changing regu

lations and markets and grow their businesses We combine innovative strategic thinking industry expertise

relevant service lines and thorough understanding of technology to deliver results for our clients We work

collaboratively with our clients using small multidisciplinary teams because we believe the most lasting and

significant improvements occur when the client is integrally involved in the change Our multidisciplinary

approach enables our consultants to develop and execute innovative strategies that may not be identified by

consulting firms that use more traditional team structures We go to market by vertical industry and focus on

businesses that are strategically dependent upon technology and in particular information technology We

currently serve clients primarily in five industries financial services insurance healthcare enterprise and

public sector The Companys enterprise practice serves clients across several industries including

manufacturing retail distribution travel and transportation telecommunications and consumer packaged

goods

In July 2006 the Company sold portions of its international operations that included the offices and

respective operations in Barcelona Dubai Madrid Munich Paris and Sªo Paulo These operations are

reported as discontinued operations in the financial statements and related notes The Company retained its

consulting practices in North America the United Kingdom U.K and India which are markets of global

strategic focus These operations are considered continuing operations All previously reported data from

the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss has been reclassified to

conform to this presentation to allow for meaningful comparison The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows



is prepared on combined basis continuing operations plus discontinued operations
for all periods

presented All analytical and statistical references refer to data from continuing operations only unless

otherwise stated

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 we generated net revenue of $177.2 million from clients

At March 31 2010 we employed 527 consultants and 116 operations employees Our physical locations are

comprised of six offices in North America Europe and Asia which include Chicago Hartford London

Mumbai New York City and Washington D.C For further information regarding net revenue and long lived

assets by geographic region see Note Geographic Data of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K We had one client that accounted for

12% of revenue for the fiscal year ended March 31 2008 but no clients that individually accounted for more

than 10% of revenue in fiscal years 2009 and 2010

Industry Background and Opportunity

Demand in the consulting industry is driven by change The business environment today is faced with

significant changes on wide variety of fronts including globalization regulatory requirements economic

cycles new competition industry and market consolidation organizational restructurings and new tech

nologies Management teams are constantly assessing the potential impact of these changes on their

businesses Many of these changes are significant and impact entire organizations Other changes impact

specific customer segments products or functional areas

Technological change is among the most pervasive of these changes because it is both necessitated by

other changes and also because of dramatic changes in technology itself Technology often fundamentally

affects how company relates to its customers suppliers employees investors and competitors As such

organizations often invest significant resources in technology and technology is increasingly visible at the

highest levels of executive management including the CEO and the board of directors

Management teams turn to consultants for number of reasons including the need for deep expertise in

specific area shorter execution timeframes risk mitigation objective perspective and the presence of an

outside change agent
We believe that companies increasingly seek outside consultants that can provide

combination of innovative strategic analysis in-depth industry expertise and thorough understanding of

information technology and its applications to help them create and execute plans that will improve their

businesses

Our Services

Diamond provides services that help leading organizations worldwide understand and leverage infor

mation technology to improve operations increase flexibility reduce costs address changing regulations and

markets and grow their businesses We offer clients the skills of traditional information technology service

provider with the objective advisory role of the traditional strategic consulting firms We currently operate

globally with offices in North America the United Kingdom and India We sell our services to c-level

executives and their senior leadership teams

We have business model that we believe is preferred by clients Our business model is collaborative and

multidisciplinary providing better value to clients through knowledge transfer and better results through our

unique perspective that combines strategy and execution skills with business and technology skills We

believe this approach creates the most lasting and powerful improvements for our clients

We go to market by vertical industry and focus on businesses that are strategically dependent on

information technology Our vertical industry practices provide the lens through which we go to market Our

service lines are what we do for our clients While our service lines do not change significantly over time our

service offerings are designed to quickly adapt to client and market needs By utilizing our consultants core

skills in strategy information technology marketing operations and program management to provide the

foundation for our service offerings we are able to be agile because we are not dependent upon particular



economic business or technology cycle or product Diamond currently has four service lines as illustrated in

the graphic below

Business Design and Peiformance Improvement evaluating and creating the needed business

design and technology architecture to support companys strategies interface with markets and

measure and achieve improvement objectives

Information Advantage building core competency in advancing information architecture and

analytic skills to improve management decision making and economic performance

Customer Impact creating well designed integrated market facing experience across key areas

critical to driving demand customers channels and products/services

Execution providing rigorous approach to manage and measure progress and consistently deliver

business and technology programs that produce economic results

Diamonds high-impact teams help clients design and execute their most critical strategies Senior

executives rely on us to help them succeed in the marketplace by using powerful new business designs

advanced decision-making capabilities deep market and customer insights and proven delivery skills to

create sustainable economic value

Industries Served

We currently serve clients primarily through five vertical industries financial services insurance

healthcare enterprise and public sector The Companys enterprise practice serves clients across several

industries including manufacturing retail distribution travel and transportation telecommunications and

consumer packaged goods We are working to grow healthcare as percent of revenue because this industry is

less cyclical and is expected to increase long-term revenue predictability

Financial Services Industry Our financial services industry practice provides services to capital

markets firms full-service retail and commercial banks credit card issuers credit card processors and

payment system operators retail brokerages and asset managers We help these financial services clients with

their most pressing issues including the need to manage large technology and business transformations grow

revenues by developing information management strategies improve service improve productivity and

effectiveness drive industry-leading compliance and risk management initiatives and assess various leading

technologies Representative clients in the financial services industry have included Goldman Sachs Group

Inc and American Express Company Financial services clients represented approximately 30% 30% and

31% of billed fee revenue during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Insurance Industry Our insurance industry practice provides services to life property and casualty

reinsurance and brokerage firms We advise and collaborate with our clients to help them unlock the market

value of their business strategies such as improving the return on marketing and sales investments through

customer experience improvement across acquisition cross-sell and retention areas exploiting the use of

information to create competitive advantage through improved insight and decision making creating more

flexible product and service delivery architectures that increase speed to market and product profitability



designing targeted solutions to meet the growing retirement populations needs using IT innovation to drive

global growth and improving distribution service platforms Representative clients in the insurance industry

have included Allstate Corporation The Guardian Life Insurance Company of America and Willis Group

Holdings Limited Insurance clients represented approximately 23% 24% and 26% of billed fee revenue

during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Healthcare Industry Our healthcare industry practice provides services across the healthcare value

chain Our clients include major pharmaceutical biotech device health insurance provider and disease

management companies We help our healthcare clients address some of their most important business and

technology issues in the areas of healthcare reform consumer directed healthcare strategy and execution IT

optimization and value extraction integrated business and technology architecture process and planning and

large transformational program management Representative healthcare clients have included Pfizer Inc

Bayer HealthCare LLC CIGNA Corporation and Aetna Inc Healthcare clients represented approximately

21% 19% and 21% of billed fee revenue during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Enterprise Industry The enterprise practice is cross-industry practice Its role is to identify incubate

and scale new vertical practices The enterprise practice serves clients across several vertical industries

including consumer packaged goods manufacturing retail distribution telecommunications media and

travel and transportation We help our clients find solutions for complex business and technology problems

such as data and information management customer experience design e-commerce sales operations

planning transformational technology platforms supply chain processes and data analytics We help our

clients better understand customer needs across the value chain increase visibility to their customers and

assist with strategic alternatives to maximize growth and operating income Representative enterprise practice

clients have included United States Gypsum USG Kraft Del Monte PepsiAmericas Sprint Comcast and

First Group Enterprise practice clients represented approximately 23% 23% and 18% of billed fee revenue

during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Public Sector Industry The public sector industry practice provides services to U.S local state and

federal government agencies Issues facing this sector today include increased scrutiny to demonstrate

performance and measurable results for spending the need to improve operational efficiency demand for

agencies to become more citizen-centric by minimizing complexity and improving responsiveness broad

band policy and homeland security Representative clients in the public sector have included the U.S Depart

ment of Justice the Chicago Public Schools and the New York Economic Development Corporation Public

sector clients represented approximately 3% 4% and 4% of billed fee revenue during fiscal years 2008 2009

and 2010 respectively

Our Competitive Strengths

We combine innovative strategic thinking in-depth vertical industry expertise thorough understanding

of information technology and its applications complex program management skills and global perspective

to deliver economic impact for our clients We offer clients the skills of traditional information technology

service provider with the objective advisory role of the traditional strategic consulting firms We help our

clients use information technology to improve operations increase flexibility reduce costs address changing

regulations and markets and grow their businesses We believe the following attributes in combination

distinguish us from our competitors

Objectivity We provide our clients with objective advice in the areas of strategy information

technology operations and program management We believe that the increasing cost and complexity of

information technology and the changing structure within the consulting industry increase the value to senior

management of an objective advisor such as Diamond We have intentionally avoided offering services or

entering into alliances that might bias our objectivity such as selling or reselling hardware or software or

offering software development services

Collaborative and Multidisciplinary Model We work with our clients from the earliest stages of study

and assessment through idea generation strategy creation and execution using relatively small teams skilled

in the disciplines of strategy information technology operations and program management We believe our

business model provides our Company with fundamental differentiation because it requires collaborative



approach with the client utilizes multidisciplinary teams and effectively leverages the ongoing stream of new

intellectual capital in our organization Our model allows us to be an objective and trusted advisor who

provides the high value services to our clients from strategy through execution It demands that we work

collaboratively with our clients which we believe is best for dealing with important business issues because

the most lasting and significant improvements occur when the client is integrally involved in the process
This

approach transfers to the client critical knowledge and accountability that is necessary to enact lasting and

productive change

Delivery of Results Diamond delivers tangible results not just recommendations Our consultants

work with client management to develop complete cost/benefit analysis which focuses on metrics such as

shareholder value and return on invested capital Diamond then works with the client to execute plans and

achieve the results We are currently expanding our execution services by adding junior-level staff to perform

more of the execution work on our projects that is currently being performed by either in-house or third-party

resources This is modest refinement of our current model that should allow us to grow more consistently

provide more value to our clients and allow our people more interesting leadership responsibilities and greater

career opportunities

Strategic Vertical Industry Insight and Expertise We focus on serving vertical industries that are

strategically dependent on information technology We believe our vertical industry focus enables us to define

strategies and deliver results that effectively address the particular market dynamics regulatory environ

ments and business opportunities facing our clients in that industry

Ability to Quickly Evolve Our Offerings The consulting industry is affected by changes in economic

business and technology cycles which requires consulting firm to be agile in order to maintain the

relevancy of its services to the market Our approach to identify and scale new service offerings as well as

change our current service offerings enables us to meet client demands Our people are skilled in three

enduring competencies strategy information technology and marketing and operations as well as the

underlying program management skills required to manage and orchestrate change that are independent of

particular economic business or technology cycles

Strong Culture The most important asset of consulting firmis its people Teams with strong culture

that work well together provide superior results to our clients We have developed strong and enduring

culture by recruiting primarily from leading graduate and undergraduate universities promoting from within

and developing an environment of continuous learning and innovation that helps to retain our talented

professionals see Employees and Culture We are committed to the long-term growth and development of

each of our professionals

Continuous Innovation We believe that an enduring high-quality consulting firm must have three

basic qualities employ highly talented people maintain track record of high-impact work and have the

ability to continuously generate new and relevant intel1ectual capital While number of consulting firms

have talented people and strong client focus the ability to continuously generate new intellectual capital is

more difficult Diamond has systematic approach to innovation which ensures that we stay ahead of the

intellectual capital curve and deliver highly advanced thinking to our clients across industries and within

industries

Experienced and Motivated Management Our senior management team has deep expertise in con

sulting and experience managing this business through business economic and technology cycles as well as

skills in establishing and developing client relationships

Our Growth Strategy

Our goal is to become the consultant of choice for clients looking for an objective partner to help them

understand and leverage information technology to improve operations increase flexibility reduce costs

address changing regulations and markets and grow their businesses Our business model is designed to allow

us to be an objective and trusted advisor who provides the high value services to our clients from strategy

through execution We believe our business model provides our Company with fundamental differentiation

because it requires collaborative approach with the client utilizes multidisciplinary teams and effectively



leverages the ongoing stream of new intellectual capital in our organization The following strategies guide

our actions as we grow our business

Continue to Diversify Across Industries Service Lines and Geographic Locations We believe that

diversifying our business across industries and key geographies
will allow the Company to have steady

growth through economic business and technology cycles We expect the number of vertical industries we

serve as well as the services we offer and geographic locations in which we work to change and grow as our

expertise and client demands evolve We expect to add additional service lines to meet the future needs of our

clients and the market We currently serve clients across the globe through offices in North America the U.K

and India

Focus on and Expand Relationships with Core Clients We develop strong long-term relationships

with our clients that often lead to repeat business and referrals We achieve this by doing high-impact work

and cultivating close relationships with CEOs and senior leadership teams even after our work is complete

The access contact and goodwill generated through our existing client relationships afford us opportunities

to provide additional services often resulting in multiple projects at single client and referrals to new clients

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 the average duration of client relationship reached an all-time high

of 37 months In addition we continued to work with 18 of our top 20 clients from the year-ago period

Increase the Awareness of Our Brand through Intellectual Capital We intend to continue to invest in

the development of our intellectual capital to bring leading-edge ideas to our client projects and to improve

our brand and positioning in the markets we serve We continuously seek to identify disseminate and

incorporate new intellectual capital throughout our organization to keep abreast of business and information

technology trends while creating repeatable frameworks that can be leveraged to deliver results more

effectively and efficiently We believe that building brand image facilitates both the lead generation process

and the ability to attract and retain the best people by raising awareness of our firm resulting in an increase in

the number of new clients and recruitment opportunities

Expand the Ratio of Partners to Staff Since the Company was founded we have worked in teams that

have typically had ratio of one partner to six or seven staff consultants We see an opportunity in the

marketplace to increase our leverage within our current model to one partner to up to twelve staff consultants

over time These additional staff consultants will be junior-level consultants performing more of the

execution work on our projects that is currently being performed by either in-house or third-party resources

This is modest refinement of our current model that is expected to allow us to grow more consistently

provide more value to our clients and allow our people more interesting leadership responsibilities and greater

career opportunities

Continue to Develop Client Analytics Capability In late 2006 we established the Diamond Infor

mation Analytics Center in Mumbai to extend our information and analytics capabilities The center is

staffed by professionals with advanced statistics and econometrics capabilities and provides fast insightful

analysis of complex marketing and operational issues where intelligent use of data holds the key to better

decisions and actions We anticipate being able to add value to clients across all verticals by helping them to

better understand and compete in their markets This capability should allow us to extend and broaden client

relationships globally

Business Development

We primarily serve c-level executives of national and multinational businesses Our fees are sourced

from both operating budgets as well as information technology budgets within our clients organizations Our

practice partners the term partner is an internal designation only and does not refer to partner of general

or limited partnership all partners are officers of the Company are assigned to an industry practice see Our

Services Industries Served Each vertical industry maintains list of prospects and senior partner is

assigned revenue and profit contribution responsibility for each vertical

Our business development process
is designed to efficiently attract the Companys best prospects

leverage the firms strong track record of project successes and references and then sustain long-term

value-added relationship Our programs are designed to build brand recognition create and provide for the



placement of new intellectual capital promote industry practices and develop and deepen client relationships

in focused manner

We have number of programs designed to create awareness of Diamond and its capabilities including

media relations advertising speeches blogs and social media books published viewpoints surveys and the

Company website These programs are built around specific intellectual capital within our target industries

and are focused on executives within our target clients and prospects Visit the Diamond website at

www.diamondconsultants.com to download recent studies and whitepapers

We also have number of programs designed to create relationships with interested executives while

continuing to showcase the Companys capabilities

DiamondExchange DiamondExchangez programs are designed to deepen and broaden relationships

with prospective and existing client executives while engaging in dialog about strategic business issues

CEOs and other senior executives within our target vertical industries are invited to participate in the

Exchange and to become regular members DiamondExchange events are designed to build community

among our member executives guest participants Diamond partners our Diamond Fellows and other

Diamond Network members see below The content of the DiamondExchange program showcases the

Companys capabilities drawing on findings from recent client work and primary and secondary research to

help executives understand the strategic risks and opportunities of emerging technologies proactive effort

is made to ensure that current and former clients continue to participate in the DiamondExchange events

ensuring that the Company keeps them in value-added relationship

Diamond Network Diamond maintains network of experts to augment its skills and relationships

Members of the Diamond Network help the firm to enhance its understanding of emerging marketplace

developments provide new client introductions and enhance the value we provide to our clients The network

has the following components

Diamond Fellows The Diamond Fellows are group of recognized business and technology leaders

associated with Diamond Diamond Fellows provide source of intellectual capital introduce us to

prospective clients author and contribute to industry publications serve as faculty to the Diamond-

Exchange program and participate in client projects Diamond Fellows are contractually committed to

dedicate certain number of days annually to Diamond to support marketing and client work Diamond

Fellows are compensated with combination of equity and per diem payments for services provided to

us or to our clients on our behalf As of March31 2010 we had eleven Diamond Fellows biography

for each Fellow may be viewed on the Companys website www.diamondconsultants.com The names

and titles of the Diamond Fellows are listed below

Dan Ariely James Duke Professor of Behavioral Economics Duke University

Vincent Barabba Chairman Kings County Ventures and Market Insight Corporation

Gordon Bell Senior Researcher Microsoft Bay Area Research Center

Dan Bricklin Chief Technology Officer Interland Inc

Linda Hill Wallace Brett Donham Professor of Business Administration Harvard Business School

Alan Kay Ph.D President Viewpoints Research Institute mc Fellow HP Labs

Andrew Lippman Ph.D Co-founder MIT Media Lab

Chunka Mui Chairman Diamond Fellows and Partner Cornerloft Partners

David Reed Ph.D Information Architect and Independent Entrepreneur

Larry Smarr Ph.D founding director of the California Institute for Telecommunications and

Information Technology and Harry Gruber Professor in the Jacobs Schools Department of

Computer Science and Engineering at UCSD

Marvin Zonis Ph.D Professor of International Economics University of Chicago Booth School

of Business



Independent Advisors executives who offer strategic industry oversight and guidance to our growth

initiatives intellectual capital development and client relationships At March 31 2010 we had

relationships with three independent advisors

Industry Advisors leaders spanning the gamut from industry to academia enhance Diamonds

understanding of emerging marketplace developments in target industry practices and how they will

impact clients in addition to providing brand awareness and new client introductions At March 31

2010 we had five industry advisors

Client Relationship Executives Client Relationship Executives or CREs provide an alternative

business development channel for Diamond Our CREs consist of retired executives executive

s-in-transition and independent consultants The program leverages these executives senior-level

contacts within our targeted vertical industries The program is also designed to enhance brand

awareness of our capabilities among industry sector senior executives CREs do not directly offer

Diamond services but facilitate introductions to industry buyers of consulting services Our CREs

have non-exclusive contracts with Diamond and are typically paid on commission basis At

March 31 2010 we had three CREs

Academic Networks We have formal relationships with two academic groups that provide seminars

and other content and networking opportunities MIT CISR Center for Information Systems

Research conducts field-based research on issues related to the management and use of information

technology IT in complex organizations This network is applicable across all of our vertical

industries and is focused on technology oriented functions The second formal network is Duke

Universitys Center for Behavioral Economics The Center aims to create partnership between

practitioners and academics to share insights to enable businesses to design products and programs

that improve ways that people actually reason and think In general behavioral economics in its

application is particularly useful for companies that want to change their consumer behavior in

domains related to complex decisions such as health self-health financial and day-to-day consumer

decision making

Alliances leading technology and services companies that support Diamond rapidly deliver high-

performance business and technology solutions We currently have non-revenue alliance relationships

with four companies International Business Machines Corporation Oracle Corporation Hewlett-

Packard Company and SAS Institute Inc

Employees and Culture

Employees As of March31 2010 Diamond had 643 employees Of these employees 527 were client-

serving professionals and 116 were operations personnel comprising intellectual capital development

marketing human resources finance accounting legal internal information systems and administrative

support The responsibilities of our partners include client relationship development business development

client management program management and execution thought leadership professional staff development

and mentonng As of March 31 2010 we had 58 practice partners

Culture We believe our ability to provide effective multidisciplinary teams is dependent upon our

ability to develop and sustain business culture that is common across all competencies and industry practices

in the organization Diamonds employees are talented and energetic professionals that come from

multitude of professional backgrounds Diamond believes that this fosters an exciting and diverse work

environment Three primary elements comprise our culture

an environment that intellectually challenges our personnel through continuous training and inno

vative high-impact client work

consistent compensation and career paths across all competencies within Diamond and

participation by all of our employees in the continuing development and ownership of Diamond

Recruiting We believe our long-term success will depend on our ability to continue to attract retain

and motivate highly skilled employees We attribute our success in hiring these people to our ability to



provide individuals with high-impact client opportunities multidisciplinary training career development

attractive long-term career advancement opportunities small-team work environment collaborative

approach to consulting and competitive compensation

Although number of our current employees were hired directly from other firms our primary long-

term strategy is to hire professionals from the leading undergraduate and graduate business and technology

programs at leading universities Senior-level positions are predominantly filled from internal promotions

Training and Professional Development Our training and professional development programs help us

to deliver high-quality services to our clients as well as to attract and retain highly skilled professionals We

have developed programs that ensure all individuals have the opportunity to develop consulting business and

technology skills throughout their careers Leveraging our innovation programs our professional develop

ment programs reinforce our culture by exposing all professionals to the various services we provide while

further developing deep skills in each professionals principal area of expertise

Compensation Our compensation programs have been structured to attract and retain highly skilled

professionals by offering competitive base salaries coupled with annual cash bonus incentive opportunities In

April 2009 the Company shifted from primarily equity-based variable compensation to performance driven

cash bonus awards We will continue to issue equity to new hires and for major promotions as we believe it is

important for our employees to be aligned with our public stockholders

Our partners and non-partners are eligible to receive cash bonus commensurate with their level of

responsibility and based on overall Company performance as well as individual performance Our partners

are granted equity upon being elected partner that typically vests ratably over five years More information

about our compensation programs may be found in our proxy statement under compensation discussion and

analysis

Competition

We operate in competitive and rapidly changing global market and compete with variety of

organizations that offer services similar to those that we offer Our clients generally retain us on non-

exclusive basis We compete with number of different types of businesses including

Traditional management and strategy consulting firms that focus on advising managements on orga

nization and corporate strategy Many of the traditional strategic consulting firms offer services in infor

mation technology

Systems integration and IT consulting firms that design and implement technology solutions including

software installation for departments and enterprises These firms have grown in size and scope of services

including the provision of offshore software development

Information technology product and service vendors that offer technical consulting to support their own

products Many of these firms have also developed various alliances with systems integration and IT

consulting firms to augment their own capabilities

In addition we also compete with the internal strategy or technology departments of client as they may

choose to conduct the work internally

Many of our competitors are substantially larger than we are and have significantly greater financial

technical and marketing resources greater name recognition and greater revenues Furthermore we face the

challenge of competing for and retaining the best personnel available in the business services market Mergers

or consolidations in our market may create new larger or better-capitalized competitors with enhanced

abilities to attract and retain professionals

We believe that the principal criteria considered by prospective clients when selecting consulting firm

include skills and capabilities of consultants scope of services service model approach global reach

technical and industry expertise reputation and quality of past work perceived value and results

orientation
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We believe we are well positioned against our competitors Furthermore we believe the increasing

complexity of technology and the current structural changes in the consulting industry increase the value to

senior management of an objective advisor with deep expertise in strategy marketing operations and

technology including the ability to accelerate program execution

Executive Officers of the Registrant

At present our executive officers are as follows

Position

Adam Gutstein 47 President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Karl Bupp 48 Chief Financial Officer

John Sviokla 52 Vice Chairman and Director

Stephen Warrington 48 Vice President and Managing Partner United

Kingdom and India

Thomas Weakiand 43 Vice President and Managing Partner Healthcare

Adam Gutstein joined Diamond as partner in January 1994 and became Chief Executive Officer on

April 2006 Mr Gutstein was given the added title of President in September 2006 He has served as

director of the Company since August of 1999 From May 2000 through March 2006 Mr Gutstein held

various executive leadership positions in North America Europe Latin America and Asia including

Managing Director of International Operations From July 1998 to April 2000 Mr Gutstein served as

Chief Operating Officer of the Company Prior to joining Diamond Mr Gutstein was Vice President at

Technology Solutions Company and Manager with Andersen Consulting now Accenture

Karl Bupp joined Diamond in April 1994 as partner and Vice President of Financial Planning

responsible for our internal planning analysis and treasury
functions Since July 1998 Mr Bupp has served

as our Chief Financial Officer Prior to joining Diamond Mr Bupp was the Corporate Controller and Director

of Planning and Treasury Services for Technology Solutions Company From 1985 to 1993 he held various

financial management and analyst positions with MCI Telecommunications Corporation

John Sviokla joined the Company in September 1998 as partner and Vice President and became

member of our Board of Directors in August 1999 Since April 2000 Dr Sviokla has served as Vice

Chairman Prior to joining Diamond Dr Sviokla was professor at the Harvard Business School from

October 1986 to August 1998 His pioneering work on Marketspace established Harvards first course on

electronic commerce and he co-authored the seminal articles Managing in the Marketspace and Exploiting

the Virtual Value Chain both appearing in the Harvard Business Review Dr Sviokla has authored over 90

articles and cases has edited books and has been consultant to large and small companies around the world

He is or has been guest professor at many universities including Kellogg MIT The London Business

School the Melbourne Business School and the Hong Kong Institute of Science and Technology

Stephen Warrington joined Diamond as Vice President and Managing Partner U.K in December 2004

and became Vice President and Managing Partner U.K and India in March 2008 He has extensive

experience in leading management advisory businesses and has worked widely in the U.K and continental

Europe serving top management of major companies Mr Warringtons principal focus is in financial

services covering retail and investment banking insurance asset management and credit cards His

functional expertise includes strategy marketing operations and broad performance transformation pro

grams Prior to joining Diamond Mr Warrington held senior positions at Unisys from 2003 to 2004

McKinsey and Company from 1990 to 2003 and HSBC from 1984 to 1990

Thomas Weakland joined the firm as Principal in February 1994 and became Managing Partner of

Diamonds Global Sourcing Practice in 2002 and Managing Partner of the firms Healthcare practice in 2005

He has more than 20 years of experience helping organizations develop manage and extract significant

benefits through better aligning their business strategies with their technology capabilities Mr Weakland is

considered leading authority on strategic sourcing and has been widely quoted in The Wall Street Journal

Reuters and numerous other publications as well as National Public Radio and BBC Radio Prior to joining
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Diamond Mr Weakiand served as senior consultant for General Electric Consulting and as principal at

Technology Solutions Company

Available Information

The executive offices of Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc are located at

Suite 3000 John Hancock Center 875 North Michigan Avenue Chicago Illinois 60611 and our telephone

number is 312 255-5000 Our stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol

DTPI Our internet address is http//www.diamondconsultants.com We make available free of charge on

the Investor Relations section of our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on

Form l0-Q Cunent Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably

practicable after such material is electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

SEC pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act We also make available through our website

other reports filed with the SEC under the Exchange Act including our proxy statements and reports filed by

officers and directors under Section 16a of that Act as well as our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics We

do not intend for information contained in our website to be part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Any materials we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at

100 Street N.E Washington DC 20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may

be obtained by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 The SEC maintains an Internet site http//www.sec.gov

that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file

electronically with the SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below However the risks described are not the only

ones we face Any of the following risks could have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition and operating results You also should refer to the other information contained in this report

including our financial statements and the related notes

Our Profitability Will Suffer If We Are Not Able to Maintain Our Pricing and Chargeability and

Control Our Costs

Our profit margin and therefore our profitability is largely function of the rates we are able to recover

for our services and the chargeability of our professionals Accordingly if we are not able to maintain the

pricing for our services or an appropriate chargeability rate for our professionals and simultaneously control

our costs we will not be able to sustain our profit margin and our profitability will suffer The rates we are able

to recover for our services are affected by number of factors including

our clients perception of our ability to add value through our services

competition

introduction of new services or products by us or our competitors

pricing policies of our competitors and

general economic conditions that affect the demand for our services

Our chargeability rates also are affected by number of factors including

seasonal trends primarily as result of our hiring cycle and holiday vacations

our ability to transition employees from completed projects to new engagements and

our ability to forecast demand for our services and thereby maintain an appropriate headcount in the

appropriate areas of our workforce

Our profitability is also function of our ability to control our costs and improve our efficiency Current

and future cost reduction initiatives may not be sufficient to maintain our margins if challenging economic

environment existed for several quarters
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Our Inability to Attract and Retain Employees Could Have Material Adverse Affect on our

Business

The Companys success depends upon its ability to attract retain and motivate highly skilled profes

sionals at all levels Qualified client-serving professionals are in great demand and are likely to remain

limited resource for the foreseeable future The loss for any reason of number of the Companys client-

serving professionals or executives or the inability to attract retain and motivate qualified personnel could

have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

Our Revenue Could Be Adversely Affected by the Loss of Significant Client or the Failure to

Collect Large Account Receivable

We have in the past derived and may in the future derive significant portion of our revenue from

relatively limited number of major clients From year to year revenue from one or more individual clients

may exceed 10% of our revenue During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 we had no clients that

individually accounted for over 10% of our net revenue If we lose any major clients or any of our clients

cancel or significantly reduce large projects scope we would lose significant amount of revenue In

addition if we fail to collect large account receivable or group of receivables we could be subject to

significant financial exposure

Significant or Prolonged Economic Downturn Could Have Material Adverse Effect on Our

Results of Operations

Our results of operations are affected by the level of business activity of our clients which in turn is

affected by the level of economic activity in the customer segments industries and markets that they serve

decline in the level of business activity of our clients could have material adverse effect on our revenue and

profit margin Future economic conditions could cause some clients to reduce or defer their expenditures for

consulting services We have implemented and will continue to implement cost-savings initiatives to manage

our expenses as percentage of revenue However current and future cost-management initiatives may not be

sufficient to maintain our margins if the economic environment should weaken for prolonged period

Our Quarterly Operating Results Will Vary From Quarter to Quarter Which May Increase the

Volatility of Our Stock Price

We have experienced and may continue to experience in the future significant fluctuations in our

quarterly operating results particularly when measured on percentage basis These fluctuations could result

in increased volatility in the market price of our Common Stock

Factors that may cause our quarterly operating results to significantly vary include

the business decisions of our clients regarding the use of our services

the timing of projects and their termination

the timing of revenue or income

the timing of hiring compensation and benefits expenses

our ability to transition employees quickly from completed projects to new engagements

the introduction of new products or services by us or our competitors

changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors

our ability to manage costs including personnel costs and support services costs and

global economic and political conditions

The timing of revenue is difficult to forecast because our sales cycle is relatively long and our services

are affected by the financial condition and management decisions of our clients including the ability to cancel
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our services on short notice while high percentage of our expenses are relatively fixed at the beginning of

any period

Competition in Our Industry is Intense and Could Harm Our Business

Increased competition in our industry could result in price reductions reduced gross margins or loss of

market share any of which could seriously harm our business The business and technology consulting

services market which includes large number of participants is subject to rapid technological changes and

is highly competitive We compete with number of companies that have significantly greater financial

technical and marketing resources greater name recognition and greater revenue than ours We believe that

the principal competitive factors in our industry include

results orientation

technical and industry expertise

perceived value

effectiveness of strategic business models

service delivery approach

diagnostic capabilities and

scope of services

We believe that our ability to compete also depends in part on number of competitive factors outside of

our control including the ability of our competitors to hire retain and motivate senior consultants the price at

which others offer comparable services and the extent of our competitors responsiveness to client needs We

may not be able to compete successfully with our competitors in the future

In addition there are relatively low barriers to entry in our industry We do not own any patented

technology that inhibits competitors from entering the market or providing services similar to ours As

result new and unknown market entrants could pose threat to our business

The Absence of Long-Term Contracts With Our Clients Reduces the Predictability of Our

Revenue

Our clients are generally able to reduce or cancel their use of our professional services without penalty

and in some circumstances with little notice As result we believe that the number of clients or the number

and size of our existing projects are not reliable indicators or measures of future revenue We will need to

continuously acquire new clients and/or new projects with existing clients to meet our expenses When

client defers modifies or cancels project there is no assurance that we will be able to rapidly redeploy our

professionals to other projects in order to minimize the non-chargeable time of employees and the resulting

adverse impact on operating results We may not be able to replace cancelled or reduced contracts with new

business or rapidly reduce our expenses to offset cancelled or reduced contracts As result our revenue and

profits could decline

Failure to Meet Client Expectations Could Result in Losses and Negative Publicity

failure or inability by us to meet clients expectations could damage our reputation and adversely

affect our ability to attract new business and result in delayed or lost revenue Our client engagements involve

the creation and implementation of business strategies and other processes that can be critical to our clients

businesses We may be sued or unable to collect accounts receivable if client is not satisfied with our service

Our client contracts may not protect us from
liability

for damages in the event that we are sued In

addition our liability insurance coverage may not continue to be available on reasonable terms or in sufficient

amounts The successful assertion of any large claim or group of claims against us or our failure to collect

large account receivable could result in material adverse effect on our business
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The Price for Our Common Stock Has Been Volatile and Unpredictable

The price of our Common Stock has historically been volatile Our Common Stock has been listed on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market since February 1997 From March 31 2005 through March 31 2010 our

high and low sales price has ranged from high of $16.25 to low of $1.84 The market price of our Common

Stock may experience fluctuations in the future for variety of reasons These include

negative news about other publicly traded companies in our industry

general economic or stock market conditions unrelated to our operating performance

quarterly variations in our operating results

changes in earnings estimates by analysts

announcements of new contracts or service offerings by us or our competitors

financial performance of the Company and

other events or factors

Fluctuations in the market prices of technology related companies or those of our clients may continue to

occur and disproportionately impact our stock price In addition volatility or significant decline in the price

of our Common Stock could diminish or impair our ability to use equity-based awards which are

component of our overall compensation system

Inability to Keep Pace with Rapidly Changing Technology May Impair Our Ability to Remain

Competitive

Our failure to develop business and technology consulting services that keep pace with continuing

changes in technology evolving industry standards information technology and client preferences would

likely result in decreased demand for our services Our challenges in this area include the need to

continue to develop our strategic and technical experience

develop new services that meet changing client needs and

effectively understand leading technologies

We may not be able to meet these challenges on timely or successful basis

If We Are Unable to Protect Our Intellectual Property Rights or If We Infringe Upon the Intellec

tual Property Rights of Others Our Business May Be Harmed

Failure to secure or maintain protection of our intellectual property
could adversely affect our ability to

service our clients and generate revenue We rely on combination of non-disclosure and other contractual

agreements and copyright and trademark laws to protect our proprietary rights We enter into confidentiality

agreements with our employees require that our clients enter into such agreements and limit access to and

distribution of our proprietary information However these efforts may be insufficient to prevent misap

propriation of our proprietary information or to detect unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights

Ownership of intellectual property developed during our client engagements is typically assigned to the

client upon payment for our services We generally retain the right to use any intellectual property that is

previously developed by us or developed during client engagement that is of general applicability and is not

specific to the clients project Issues relating to the ownership of and rights to use intellectual property

developed during the course of client engagement can be complicated Clients may demand assignment of

ownership or restrictions on our use of the work product In addition disputes could arise if we infringe on the

intellectual property rights of third parties We may have to pay economic damages to the third parties and

also indemnify our clients in these disputes and we could also suffer loss of reputation which could

adversely affect our business

15



We Must Continue to Build Recognition and Client Acceptance of Our Name

Diamond has invested significant efforts in building recognition and client acceptance of its name which

was changed on August 2006 We believe that market acceptance of the name and brand Diamond is an

important aspect of our efforts to retain and attract clients

Promoting and maintaining name recognition depends largely on the success of our marketing efforts

and the ability of Diamond to provide high quality reliable and cost-effective services These efforts will

require significant expenses which will affect our results of operations Client dissatisfaction with Company

performance could diminish the value of our brand

Our Global Operations Pose Complex Management Business Financial and Regulatory Risks

Which We May Not Adequately Address

We conduct business in multiple countries around the world During fiscal year 2010 92% of our

revenue was attributable to activities in North America and the remaining 8% was attributable to activities in

Europe and Asia which primarily include the U.K and India As result we are subject to number of risks

which we may not adequately address including

the burdens of complying with wide variety of national and local laws

multiple and possibly overlapping and conflicting tax laws

coordinating geographically separated organizations

restrictions on movement of cash

the absence in some jurisdictions of effective laws to protect our intellectual property rights

political instability

currency fluctuations and translation risk

longer payment cycles

restrictions on our ability to operate in certain geographic markets and industries for period of time

pursuant to the non-compete provisions of the agreement to sell portion of our international operations

cultural differences and

trade barriers

The Failure to Integrate or Negotiate Successfully Any Future Acquisitions Could Harm Our Busi

ness and Operating Results

If we acquire businesses in the future and are unable to successfully integrate these businesses it could

harm our business and operating results In order to remain competitive or to expand our business we may

find it necessary or desirable to acquire other businesses products or technologies We may be unable to

identify appropriate acquisition candidates If we identify an appropriate acquisition candidate we may not

be able to negotiate the terms of the acquisition successfully finance the acquisition or integrate the acquired

businesses products or technologies into our existing business and operations Further completing potential

acquisition and integrating an acquired business may strain our resources and require significant management

time In addition we may revalue or write-down the value of goodwill and other intangible assets in

connection with future acquisitions which would harm our operating results

We May Need to Raise Additional Capital in the Future Which May Not Be Available

We may not be able to raise capital or obtain debt financing in the future to meet our liquidity needs and

finance our operations and future growth We maintain revolving line of credit cash balances and cash

generated from operations Any future decreases in our operating income cash flow or stockholders equity

may impair our future ability to raise additional funds to finance operations As result we may not be able to

maintain or acquire adequate liquidity to support our operations
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Future Sales of Our Common Stock in the Public Market Could Cause the Price of Our Stock to

Decline

In the future our stockholders could sell substantial amounts of our Common Stock in the public market

which could cause our market price to decline substantial number of outstanding shares of Common Stock

and shares of our Common Stock issuable upon exercise or vest of equity awards will become eligible for

future sale in the public market at various times It has been the Companys practice to issue equity awards to

its employees on broad basis As result our employees and former employees own significant portion of

the Companys Common Stock particularly on fully-diluted basis As these equity awards vest these

individuals may choose to sell their Common Stock An increase in the number of shares of our Common

Stock in the public market could adversely affect prevailing market prices and could impair our future ability

to raise capital through the sale of our equity securities

Our Charter Documents and Delaware Law May Discourage an Acquisition of Diamond

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation by-laws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for

third party to acquire us even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders We may issue shares of

preferred stock in the future without stockholder approval and upon such terms as our Board of Directors may

determine Our issuance of this preferred stock could have the effect of making it more difficult for third

party to acquire or of discouraging third party from acquiring majority of our outstanding stock Our

charter and by-laws also provide that special stockholders meetings may be called only by our Chairman of

the Board of Directors by our Secretary at the written request of the Chairman or by our Board of Directors

with the result that any third-party takeover not supported by the Board of Directors could be subject to

significant delays and difficulties In addition our Board of Directors is divided into three classes each of

which serves for staggered three-year term which may make it more difficult for third party to gain control

of our Board of Directors

Certain of Our Contracts Pose Unique Risks

We work for various federal state and local governmental
entities and agencies primarily in our public

sector industry practice These clients have legal remedies at their disposal that our commercial clients may

not have in the event of dispute with us such as extensive audit rights and the ability to impose penalties

sanctions and debarment In addition in both the public sector practice and in our commercial practice we

sometimes enter into fixed-fee contracts If we are not successful in properly estimating our costs and timing

for completing engagements unexpected costs or unanticipated delays whatever the cause could cause our

contracts to be less profitable or unprofitable which would have an adverse effect on our results of operations

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

Our international headquarters and principal administrative information systems financial accounting

marketing legal and human resources operations are located in leased office space in Chicago Illinois We

also have leased office space
in Hartford London Mumbai New York City and Washington D.C We opened

our New York City and Mumbai India offices in March 2006 and our Hartford office in May 2006 We do not

own any real property
We believe that our leased facilities are adequate to meet our current needs and that

additional facilities are available for lease to meet future needs

Item Legal Proceedings

From time to time we are party to various lawsuits and claims in the ordinary course of business As of

the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K we are not party to any claims or actions that we believe could

have material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Market Information

The Common Stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol DTPI The

following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low intraday sales prices for our Common Stock

Sales Price Per

Share

High Low

Fiscal year ended March 31 2009

First Quarter $7.23 $4.40

Second Quarter
6.33 1.84

Third Quarter
4.96 3.20

Fourth Quarter 4.43 1.96

Fiscal year ended March 31 2010

First Quarter $4.71 $2.10

Second Quarter 6.86 4.16

Third Quarter 7.88 5.58

Fourth Quarter
8.24 6.66

Holders

On May 28 2010 the closing price of Common Stock was $9.93 per share At such date we had

approximately 6351 holders of record of Common Stock

Dividends

Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends if any as may be declared by

the Board of Directors Board out of funds legally available therefore subject to any preferential dividend

rights of outstanding Preferred Stock if any There was no Preferred Stock issued or outstanding as of

March 31 2010 On June 2009 the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved change in

the Companys dividend schedule from annual to quarterly The Board declared the following quarterly cash

dividends during the fiscal year ended March 31 2010

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

June 30 2009 September 30 2009 December 31 2009 March 31 2010

Declaration date June 2009 August 19 2009 November 11 2009 February 16 2010

Per share dividend $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.07

Record date June 10 2009 September 2009 November 20 2009 February 26 2010

Total amount in

thousands $1921 $1911 $1892 $1905

Payment date June 18 2009 September 15 2009 December 2009 March 12 2010

The Board declared the following annual cash dividend on its Common Stock during the fiscal year

ended March 31 2009

2009

Declaration date November 11 2008

Per share dividend $0.35

Record date November 21 2008

Total amount in thousands $9032

Payment date December 2008
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item appears under Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters included elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

Shareholder Return Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative five-year total stockholder return on our Common Stock

from March 31 2005 through March 31 2010 with the cumulative total return on the NASDAQ

Composite Index and ii the Dow Jones US Business Support Services TSM Index The comparison assumes

the investment of $100 on March 312005 in our Common Stock and in each of the indices and in each case

assumes reinvestment of all dividends

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc The NASDAQ Composite Index

And The Dow Jones US Business Support Services TSM Index

250

0- Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc

NASDAQ Composite Index

200 Dow Jones US Business Support Services TSM

iD

3/05 3/06 3/07 3/08 3/09 3/10

100 invested on 3/31/05 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending March 31

3/05 3/06 3/07 3/08 3/09 3/10

Diamond Management Technology

Consultants Inc $100.00 66.46 74.45 43.17 $18.62 60.16

NASDAQ Composite Index 100.00 119.97 134.27 118.46 85.30 142.80

Dow Jones US Business Support Services

TSM 100.00 122.60 137.59 121.00 83.07 115.62
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Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

The Board has authorized from time to time the repurchase of the Companys Common Stock in the

open market or through privately negotiated transactions During the period beginning with the inception of

the Buy-back Program in October 1998 until the meeting of directors on September 14 2004 the Board had

authorized the repurchase of up to 6.0 million shares of which 5.3 million shares were repurchased at an

aggregate cost of $70.5 million as of September 14 2004 At the meeting of directors on September 14 2004

the Board restated the aggregate amount of repurchases that could be made under the Buy-back Program to be

based on maximum dollar amount rather than maximumnumber of shares The authorization approved the

repurchase of shares under the Buy-back Program having an aggregate market value of no more than

$25.0 million In April2005 July 2006 March 2007 and February 2008 the Board authorized the repurchase

of an additional $50.0 million $35.0 million $50.0 million and $25.0 million respectively of shares of the

Companys outstanding Common Stock under the existing Buy-back Program resulting in an aggregate

market value of up to $185.0 million in addition to the 5.3 million shares repurchased prior to September 14

2004 In the absence of an additional buy-back authorization from the Board the Buy-back Program expires

when the existing authorized amounts for share repurchases have been expended During the quarter ended

March 31 2010 the Company did not repurchase any additional shares During the fiscal year ended

March 31 2010 the Company repurchased approximately 0.8 million shares at an average price of $6.05 As

of March 31 2010 the amount available for repurchase under the Board authorization was $22.1 million

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of Shares Maximum Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Average Price Purchased as Part of Value of Shares That May be

Period Shares Purchased1 Paid per Share2 Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plan

April 2009
June 30 2009 72100 $3.88 72100 $26652894

July 2009
September 30
2009 503937 $6.06 487894 $23688771

October 2009
December 31
2009 278659 $6.74 245327 $22060589

January 2010
March 31 2010 $22060589

In addition to purchases made under the Companys publicly announced Buy-back Program included in

this column are transactions under the Companys stock based compensation plans involving the delivery

to the Company of 49375 shares of Common Stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations in connection

with the vesting of restricted shares granted to Company employees

Average price paid per share of stock repurchased under the Buy-Back Program is execution price

including commissions paid to brokers
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Item Selected Financial Data

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue

Net revenue

Reimbursable expenses

Total revenue

Project personnel expenses

Project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses

Reimbursable expenses

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer

Total project personnel expenses

Gross margin

Other operating expenses

Professional development and recruiting

Marketing and sales

Management and administrative support

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer

Restructuring charges recovery

Total other operating expenses

Income loss from operations

Interest income net

Other income expense net

Total other income net

Income loss from
continuing operations

before income taxes

Income tax expense benefit

Income loss from
continuing operations

after income taxes

Discontinued operations

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations including income taxes

Income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes

Discontinued operations net of income taxes

Net income loss

Basic income loss per
share of Common Stockl

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes

Net income loss

Diluted income loss per share of Common Stock1

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes

Net income loss

Shares used in computing basic income loss per
share of Common

Stockl

Shares used in computing diluted income loss per
share of Common

Stockl

Cash dividends declared
per

share of Common Stock

99111 118596 125772

18444 21574 22768

The selected financial data presented below has been derived from our consolidated financial statements

The data presented below should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto

and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Year Ended March 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Amounts in thousands except per share data

$145224

18444

163668

$168699

21574

190273

$182288

22768

205056

$152166

22812

174978

113703

22812

14290

150805

24173

$177245

32699

209944

126926

32699

159625

50319

140170

50103

148540

56516

9420

4451

26947

117555

46113

6689

3522

25328

400

35939

10174

2868

102

2970

13144

11151

1993

8838

3766

27499

24

40079

10024

4238

139

4099

14123

6908

7215

6716 5580

3103 3288

25846 25798

2402

284

40818 37783 34666

15698 13610 15653

3230 784 50

180 128 74

3410 656 124

19108 12954 15777

8873 4156 3666

10235 8798 12111

22932 7000

12577 1254 3859

12577 24186 10859

$10584 $31401 21094

400 262

400 262

8398 $12373

0.34 0.45

0.02 0.01

0.32 0.46

0.34 0.44

0.02 0.01

0.32 0.45

0.06 0.23

0.38 0.76

0.32 0.98

0.06 0.21

0.36 0.71

0.31 0.92

0.34

0.36

0.70

0.33

0.34

0.67

32963 31951 30200 26209 27139

34682 34076 31492 26209 27632

0.30 0.35 0.35 0.28
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March 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Amounts in thousands

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents 69899 84125 $53267 $46112 55834

Restricted cash 5493 6095 7338 4099 4104

Working capital 76091 81905 55566 55072 58746

Total assets 127620 120875 92395 89149 106001

Total stockholders equity2 91888 95927 $74852 $70040 69710

See Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K for an explanation of the methods used to compute basic and diluted income loss

per share data

Total stockholders equity includes the effect of the repurchase of the Companys Common Stock

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the information contained in

the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K This discussion and analysis also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and

uncertainties See Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors contained in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K We use the terms we ou us the Company and Diamond in

this report to refer to Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc and its wholly-owned

subsidiaries

Overview

Diamond is management and technology consulting firm Clients engage Diamond Management

Technology Consultants Inc to help their companies grow improve margins and increase the productivity of

their investments Working together to design and execute business strategies that capitalize on changing

market forces and technology Diamonds consultants are experts in helping clients attract and retain

customers increase the value of their information and plan and execute projects that turn strategy into

measurable results

Diamonds capabilities are rooted in deep strategy technology operations and industry experience The

firms approach to client service is based on objectivity collaboration and an unwavering commitment to its

clients best interests

In March 2006 our Board of Directors approved strategy to focus the Company on its markets in

North America the U.K and India As part of the Board approved strategy we committed to sell the portions

of our international operations that included offices and respective operations in Barcelona Dubai Madrid

MUnich Paris and Sªo Paulo and as result these are reported as discontinued operations in the financial

statements and related notes North America the U.K and India are considered continuing operations All

previously reported data from the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

has been reclassified to conform to this presentation to allow for meaningful comparison The Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows is prepared on combined basis continuing operations plus discontinued

operations for all periods presented All analytical and statistical references refer to data from continuing

operations only unless otherwise stated

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 we generated net revenue of $177.2 million from 88

clients At March 31 2010 we employed 527 consultants and 116 operations employees Our operations are

comprised of six offices in North America Europe and Asia which include Chicago Hartford London

Mumbai New York City and Washington D.C

Our revenue is driven by our ability to secure new client engagements maintain existing client

engagements and develop and implement solutions that add value to our clients Our revenue is comprised
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of professional fees for services rendered to our clients plus reimbursable expenses Prior to the commence

ment of client engagement we and our client agree on fees for services based upon the scope of the project

our staffing requirements and the level of client involvement We recognize revenue as services are

performed Our services are performed in accordance with the terms of the client engagement agreement

We bill our clients for these services on either monthly or semi-monthly basis in accordance with the terms

of the client engagement agreement Accordingly we recognize amounts due from our clients as the related

services are rendered and revenue is earned even though we may be contractually required to bill for those

services at an earlier or later date than the date services are provided Provisions are made based on our

experience for estimated uncollectible amounts These provisions net of write-offs of accounts receivable

are reflected in the allowance for doubtful accounts We also defer portion of the revenue from each client

engagement to cover the estimated costs that are likely to be incurred subsequent to targeted project

completion We refer to this as project run-on This portion of the project revenue is reflected in deferred

revenue and is calculated based on our historical project run-on experience While we have been required to

make revisions to our clients estimated deliverables and to incur additional project costs in some instances to

date there have been no such revisions that have had material adverse effect on our operating results

Approximately 90% of our revenues and expenses are denominated in the U.S Dollar which limits the

impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on consolidated revenues and expenses Approximately

10% of our revenues and expenses are generated from international transactions which are denominated in

foreign currencies The most common foreign currencies that we operate under are the British Pound Sterling

the Indian Rupee and the Euro

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009 the Company initiated tender offer that was completed on

March 2009 Tender Offer which provided employees the opportunity to exchange certain previously

granted but unvested Restricted Stock Units Eligible RSUs for Diamond Common Stock at an exchange

ratio of one Eligible RSU for 0.80 shares of Common Stock The shares are subject to restriction on sale or

transfer with such restrictions lapsing over minimum period of approximately six months and up to

maximum period of approximately four years depending on the level of the employee As result of the

Tender Offer Diamond issued 1.2 million shares of Common Stock after withholding approximately

0.5 million shares to pay employee taxes incurred on the value of the stock received in the exchange

and recorded $16.7 million pre-tax charge for stock-based compensation expense in the fourth quarter of

fiscal year 2009 under the income statement caption Stock-based compensation acceleration tender

offer Of the $16.7 million pre-tax charge $14.3 million was attributed to project personnel costs project

personnel tender offer expense impacting gross margin with the remaining $2.4 million attributed to other

operating expenses other operating tender offer expense This had significant impact on the quarterly

and annual operating results as discussed below Refer to Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional detail regarding the Tender Offer

The largest portion of our operating expenses consists of project personnel costs Project personnel costs

before reimbursable expenses consist of payroll costs variable incentive compensation stock-based com

pensation expense and related benefits expense associated with our consulting staff Other expenses included

in project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses are travel third-party vendor payments and non-

billable costs associated with the delivery of services to our clients Net revenue less project personnel costs

before reimbursable expenses gross margin is considered by management to be an important measure of

our operating performance and is driven largely by the chargeability of our consultant base the prices we

charge to our clients project personnel compensation costs and the level of non-billable costs associated with

securing new client engagements and developing new service offerings Chargeability represents measure

of our project personnels time spent on billable consulting work based on standard available business days

Gross margin increased $19.9 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 compared to the fourth

quarter of fiscal year 2009 The increase is primarily due to an increase in net revenue of $14.4 million and the

$14.3 million project personnel tender offer expense in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2009 with no similar

expense in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 partially offset by an increase in project personnel costs

before reimbursable expenses of $8.8 million related to higher project personnel headcount and variable

compensation expense
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Gross margin increased to $50.3 million in fiscal year 2010 $26.1 million increase compared to

$24.2 million for fiscal year 2009 The increase is primarily related to $25.1 million increase in net revenue

and the $14.3 million project personnel tender offer expense in fiscal year 2009 with no similar expense in

fiscal year 2010 partially offset by an increase in project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses of

$13.2 million The increase in project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses was primarily related to

increased headcount and higher variable compensation expense partially offset by decreased stock based

compensation expense Our practice headcount increased to 527 at March 31 2010 compared to 465 at

March 31 2009 Our annualized net revenue per practice professional was $367 thousand for fiscal year 2010

compared to $315 thousand for fiscal year 2009

Our other recurring operating expenses are comprised of expenses associated with the development of

our business and the support of our client-serving professionals such as professional development and

recruiting marketing and sales management and administrative support and stock-based compensation

expense earned by personnel working in these functional areas Professional development and recruiting

expenses consist primarily of recruiting and training course content development and delivery costs

Marketing and sales expenses consist primarily of the costs associated with the development and maintenance

of our marketing materials and programs Management and administrative support expenses consist primarily

of the expenses associated with operations including finance information technology human resources

facilities administration and support including the renting of office space and legal services

Management believes that income from operations which is gross margin less other operating expenses

is an important measure of our operating performance Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes increased to income of $5.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 $22.2 million

increase compared to loss from continuing operations before income taxes of $16.4 million in the fourth

quarter of the prior fiscal year The increase is primarily due to the $19.9 million increase in gross margin

described above and the $2.4 million other operating tender offer expense in the fourth quarter of fiscal year

2009 Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes increased to income of $15.8 million in

fiscal year 2010 $28.7 million increase compared to loss from continuing operations before income taxes

of $13.0 million in fiscal year 2009 The increase is primarily due to the $26.1 million increase in gross

margin described above the $2.4 million other operating tender offer expense in fiscal year 2009 and

$1.1 million decrease in training expense partially offset by lower interest income in fiscal year 2010

We regularly review our fees for services professional compensation and overhead costs to ensure that

our services and compensation are competitive within the industry and that our overhead costs are aligned

with our revenue level In addition we regularly monitor the progress of client projects with client senior

management We manage the activities of our professionals by closely monitoring engagement schedules and

staffing requirements for new engagements However rapid decline in the demand for the professional

services that we provide could result in lower chargeability of our professionals than we planned In addition

because most of our client engagements are terminable by our clients without penalty an unanticipated

termination of client project could require us to maintain underutilized employees While professional staff

levels must be adjusted to reflect active engagements we must also maintain sufficient number of senior

professionals to oversee existing client engagements and participate in our sales efforts to secure new client

assignments Our chargeability for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 was 77% which increased from 69%

in the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year Our chargeability for fiscal year 2010 was 74% compared to 63%

for fiscal year 2009

Free cash flow was $21.1 million for the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 compared to $13.0 million in

fiscal year 2009 Management believes that the free cash flow from continuing operations metric which is

non-GAAP measure defined as net cash provided by operating activities $22.4 million net of capital

expenditures $1.3 million provides consistent metric from which the performance of the business may be

monitored

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles GAAP As such we are required to make certain estimates judgments and assumptions that we
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believe are reasonable based upon
the information available These estimates and assumptions affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of

revenues and expenses during the periods presented The significant accounting policies which we believe are

the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results include the

following

Revenue Recognition

We earn revenues from range of consulting services including helping organizations worldwide to

leverage technology to develop and implement growth strategies improve operations and capitalize on

technology Our revenues are comprised of professional fees for services rendered to our clients plus

reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses and exclude applicable taxes Prior to the commencement of

client engagement we and our client agree on fees for services based upon the scope of the project our

staffing requirements and the level of client involvement Revenue is recognized over the term of the client

engagement
in direct proportion to the level of services performed by each member of the engagement team

during the period relative to the estimated total level of effort required to perform the project Therefore the

amount of revenue recognized in period is for all intents and purposes equal to the amount that would be

recognized based on the stated contract price and the ratio of direct costs incurred in the period to perform the

service to the total estimated direct costs of the project

Service revenue recognition inherently involves degree of estimation Examples of important estimates

in this area include determining the level of effort required to execute the project calculating costs incurred

and assessing our progress toward project completion on an ongoing basis We believe that these are critical

accounting estimates because they can materially affect our revenues and earnings and require us to make

judgments about matters that are uncertain We utilize number of management processes to monitor project

performance and revenue recognition including monthly reviews of the progress of each project against plan

staff and resource usage service quality and client feedback From time to time as part of our normal

management process circumstances are identified that require us to revise our estimates of the timing of

revenues to be realized on project To the extent that revised estimate affects revenue previously

recognized we record the full effect of the revision in the period when the underlying facts become known

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Deferred Revenue

We earn our revenues by providing consulting services to clients We bill our clients for these services on

either monthly or semi-monthly basis in accordance with the terms of the client engagement Accordingly

we recognize amounts due from our clients as the related services are rendered and revenue is earned even

though we may not be able to bill for those services until later date The terms of our client engagements also

require us to assume the risk of non-collection of amounts billed to clients

Management makes estimates of the amount of our billed and unbilled accounts receivable that may not

be collected from clients We believe the allowance for doubtful accounts is critical accounting estimate

because it can materially affect our operating results and requires us to make judgments about matters that are

uncertain In making these estimates management specifically analyzes individual client balances the

composition of the aging of accounts receivable historical bad debts customer credit-worthiness and current

economic trends and considers our overall experience with estimating uncollectible amounts We recognize

the effect of changes in our estimates assumptions and assessments of the factors impacting the collectability

of amounts due from customers on an ongoing basis As of March 31 2010 our accounts receivable balance

was $22.9 million including unbilled accounts receivable of $7.8 million and net of an allowance for

doubtful accounts of $0.5 million Unbilled receivables represent revenues and reimbursable expenses earned

for services performed that have not been billed Unbilled receivables are typically billed the following

month

Although we and our clients agree on the scope of projects expected deliverables and related fees in

advance from time to time we have made revisions to the scope of work and deliverables without making

corresponding adjustment to the fees for the project We refer to this as project run-on as these revisions

generally cause project to extend beyond its targeted completion We monitor our actual project run-on
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experience on an ongoing basis and perform monthly reviews of projects in progress against plan We provide

for project run-on costs based on our analysis of historical experience These provisions net of actual costs

incurred on completed projects are reflected in deferred revenue The deferred revenue balance was

$1.4 million as of March 31 2010 The balance was primarily comprised of the estimated gross amount

of services to be rendered subsequent to the targeted project completion date as well as prepaid client fees

related to consulting services that the Company expects to earn in future periods While we have been

required to make revisions to our clients estimated deliverables and to incur additional project costs in some

instances to date there have been no such revisions that have had material adverse effect on our operating

results

Stock-based Compensation

We have adopted various stock incentive and option plans that authorize the granting of qualified and

non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights SARs and Stock Awards restricted stock and

restricted stock units RSU5 to officers and employees and non-qualified stock options SARs and Stock

Awards to certain persons who were not employees on the date of grant including non-employee members of

our Board of Directors

We recognize the cost of all share based compensation arrangements in the financial statements based on

their fair value Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the

award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period Determining the fair value of share-

based awards at the grant date requires judgment including estimating the amount of expected dividends

Additionally expected forfeitures are estimated in determining stock-based compensation expense If actual

forfeitures differ from the estimates the difference is recorded in the period in which it occurs

Operating Expenses

The largest portion of our operating expenses consists of project personnel costs Project personnel costs

before reimbursable expenses consist of payroll costs stock-based compensation expense related to project

personnel variable incentive compensation and related benefits associated with professional staff Other

related expenses include travel third-party vendor payments and non-billable costs associated with the

marketing and delivery of services to our clients The amount of these project personnel costs can vary

substantially from period to period depending largely on revenue Declines in revenue will often result in

reduced chargeability of professional personnel and lower operating margins

Our other recurring operating expenses are comprised of expenses associated with the development of

our business and the support of our client-serving professionals such as professional development and

recruiting marketing and sales management and administrative support and stock-based compensation

expense earned by personnel working in these functional areas Professional development and recruiting

expenses consist primarily of recruiting and training course content development and delivery costs

Marketing and sales expenses consist primarily of the costs associated with the development and maintenance

of our marketing materials and programs Management and administrative support expenses consist primarily

of the costs associated with operations including finance information technology facilities administration

and support including the renting of office space and legal services

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

In determining our current income tax provision we assess temporary differences resulting from

differing treatments of items for tax and financial reporting purposes These differences result in deferred

tax assets and liabilities which are recorded in our consolidated balance sheets When we maintain deferred

tax assets we must assess the likelihood that these assets will be recovered from future taxable income To the

extent we believe recovery is not more likely than not we establish valuation allowance to reduce the net

deferred tax asset to value we believe will be recoverable by future taxable income We believe the

accounting estimate related to the valuation allowance is critical accounting estimate because it is highly

susceptible to change from period to period as it requires management to make assumptions about the

Companys future income over the life of the deferred tax asset and the impact of increasing or decreasing the
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valuation allowance is potentially material to our results of operations Managements assumptions about

future income require significant judgment because actual income has fluctuated in the past and may continue

to do so

In estimating future income we use our internal operating budgets and long-range planning projections

We develop our budgets and long-range projections based on recent results trends economic and industry

forecasts influencing our performance our project pipeline and other appropriate factors

We have deferred tax assets which have arisen primarily as result of temporary differences between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their related amounts in the financial statements as well as operating

losses incurred in international jurisdictions In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets we consider

whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized and

adjust the valuation allowances accordingly Management judgment is required in determining any valuation

allowance recorded against the gross deferred tax assets As of March 31 2010 the valuation allowance

against deferred tax assets was $2.7 million attributable to net operating loss carryforwards in certain foreign

and certain state jurisdictions as well as U.S federal capital loss carryforwards The need to maintain

valuation allowance is reviewed on at least quarterly basis

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For discussion of recent accounting pronouncements please refer to Note of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue

On consolidated basis net revenue increased $25.1 million or 16% in fiscal year 2010 compared to

fiscal year 2009 primarily due to an increase in our service offerings which contributed to increased demand

at our largest clients an increase in chargeability of our project personnel and higher realized billing rates all

of which benefitted from the improving economic environment Net revenue decreased $30.1 million or

17% in fiscal year 2009 as compared to fiscal year 2008 primarily due to the weakness in the global economy

We continue to focus on expanding our current client base as well as increasing current revenue streams by

further penetrating existing clients

We served 88 clients during fiscal year 2010 compared to 99 clients during fiscal year 2009 and 109

clients during fiscal year 2008 Average revenue per client increased to $2.0 million during fiscal year 2010

from $1.5 million during fiscal year 2009 Average revenue per client decreased to $1.5 million during fiscal

year 2009 from $1.7 million during fiscal year 2008

Revenue from new clients defined as clients that generated revenue in the current period but were absent

from the prior period accounted for 8% of revenue during fiscal year 2010 13% of revenue during fiscal year

2009 and 14% of revenue during the fiscal year 2008 For fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 revenue and new

client revenue mix by the industries that we serve was as follows

Billed Fee Revenue New Client Revenue

Industry 2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010

Financial Services 30% 30% 31% 20% 32% 24%

Insurance 23% 24% 26% 12% 7% 39%

Healthcare 21% 19% 21% 19% 23% 23%

Enterprise 23% 23% 18% 46% 30% 8%

Public Sector 3% 4% 4% ___% __% _%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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Operating Expenses

Project Personnel Costs

Project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses increased $13.2 million or 12% during fiscal year

2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009 The increase in project personnel costs was primarily due to increased

headcount and higher variable compensation expense partially offset by decreased project personnel stock-

based compensation expense resulting from lower overall outstanding equity awards due to the completion of

the fourth quarter fiscal year 2009 Tender Offer As percentage of net revenue project personnel costs

before reimbursable expenses decreased from 75% during fiscal year 2009 to 72% during fiscal year 2010

primarily due to higher chargeability and the resulting 16% increase in net revenue in fiscal year 2010

Project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses
decreased $12.1 million or 10% during fiscal

year 2009 as compared to fiscal year 2008 The decrease in project personnel costs was primarily due to

decreased project personnel compensation and benefits expense attributed to lower headcount and decreased

stock-based compensation expense excluding the impact of the tender offer resulting from lower overall

value of annual equity awards granted in the first quarter of fiscal year 2009 As percentage of net revenue

project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses increased from 69% during fiscal year 2008 to 75%

during fiscal year 2009 primarily due to the 17% decline in net revenue in fiscal year 2009

The following table summarizes practice personnel data for fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010

2008 2009 2010

Practice headcount 510 465 527

Annualized net revenue per practice professional in thousands $358 $315 $367

Chargeability 62% 63% 74%

Annualized voluntary attrition 16% 12% 11%

Total annualized attritionl 22% 25% 20%

Defined as voluntary attrition plus Company initiated attrition

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer project personnel

The Company completed Tender Offer on March 2009 which provided employees the opportunity

to exchange certain previously granted but unvested Restricted Stock Units Eligible RSU5 for Diamond

Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one Eligible RSU for 0.80 shares of Common Stock In fiscal year

2009 as result of the Tender Offer Diamond issued 1.2 million shares after withholding approximately

0.5 million shares to pay employee taxes incurred on the value of the stock received in the exchange and

recorded $14.3 million charge to project personnel expenses for Stock-based compensation acceleration

tender offer Refer to Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional detail

Professional Development and Recruiting

Professional development and recruiting expenses decreased $1.1 million or 17% during fiscal year

2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009 The decrease was primarily due to reduction in firm-wide meetings in

fiscal year 2010 and other firm-wide expense management initiatives The costs incurred to recruit

consultants include travel and lodging costs for our consultants and recruiting staff travel expense reim

bursements for candidates costs related to our summer intern program and sourcing fees related to non-

campus searches

Professional development and recruiting expenses decreased $2.7 million or 29% during fiscal year

2009 as compared to fiscal year 2008 The decrease was primarily due to decreased costs for training and

campus recruiting initiatives as well as lower costs incurred for experienced recruiting initiatives and

sourcing fees The costs incurred to recruit consultants include travel and lodging costs for our consultants

and recruiting staff travel expense reimbursements for candidates costs related to our summer intern

program and sourcing fees related to non-campus hire searches

28



Marketing and Sales

Marketing and sales expenses did not change significantly during fiscal year 2010 as compared to the

prior fiscal year

Marketing and sales expenses decreased $1.3 million or 30% during fiscal year 2009 as compared to

fiscal year 2008 The decrease was primarily due to lower marketing expenditures related to our

DiamondExchange events in fiscal year 2009 and costs incurred in fiscal year 2008 for pilot online

advertising campaign to raise brand awareness

Management and Administrative Support

Overall management and administrative support expenses did not change significantly during fiscal year

2010 as compared to fiscal year
2009 due to offsetting activity Higher variable compensation expense was

offset by decreased stock-based compensation expense resulting from lower overall outstanding equity

awards due to the completion of the fourth quarter fiscal year 2009 Tender Offer as well as reduction in

facilities rental expense as indicated in Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements The decrease in

rent expense resulted from favorable operating lease extensions for the Chicago office headquarters and the

London office effective July 14 2008 and December 25 2009 respectively Management and administrative

support expenses include the rent expense associated with our six offices in North America the U.K and

India

Management and administrative support expenses decreased $1.1 million or 4% in fiscal year 2009 as

compared to fiscal year 2008 This decrease was primarily due to decrease in rent expense as indicated in

Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements and decrease in compensation and benefits expense for

management and administrative personnel Management and administrative support expenses
include the rent

expense associated with our six offices in North America the U.K and India

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer other operating

The Company completed Tender Offer on March 2009 which provided employees the opportunity

to exchange certain previously granted but unvested Restricted Stock Units Eligible RSU5 for Diamond

Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one Eligible RSU for 0.80 shares of Common Stock In fiscal year

2009 as result of the Tender Offer Diamond issued 1.2 million shares after withholding approximately

0.5 million shares to pay employee taxes incurred on the value of the stock received in the exchange and

recorded $2.4 million charge to other operating expenses for Stock-based compensation acceleration

tender offer Refer to Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional detail

Restructuring Charges Recovery

We recorded restructuring recovery of $0.3 million during fiscal year 2009 as result of extending the

terms of our Chicago office headquarters lease on July 142008 The terms of the lease extension allowed the

Company to return unused office space that was previously included in the initial restructuring charge to the

landlord relieving the Company of this obligation

Other Income Net

Other income net decreased $0.5 million or 81% during fiscal year 2010 as compared to fiscal year

2009 primarily due to $0.7 million decrease in interest income caused by lower interest rate yields in fiscal

year 2010 as compared to the previous fiscal year and $0.3 million cash distribution on an available-for-sale

investment received in fiscal year 2009 partially offset by the effect of foreign currency losses on transactions

denominated in non-functional currencies in fiscal year 2009

Other income net decreased $2.8 million or 81% during fiscal year 2009 as compared to fiscal year

2008 primarily due to $2.4 million decrease in interest income caused by lower interest rate yields and

decrease in the average cash and cash equivalent balance in fiscal year 2009 as compared to the previous fiscal

year The effect of foreign currency losses on transactions denominated in non-functional currencies also
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contributed to the decrease in other income but was partially offset by $0.3 million cash distribution on an

available-for-sale investment received in fiscal year 2009

Income Tax Expense

We recorded income tax expense of $3.7 million 23% effective income tax rate in fiscal year 2010

The income tax expense was primarily related to earnings in the U.S and U.K partially offset by

$3.4 million valuation allowance reversal related to U.K deferred tax assets We recorded an income tax

benefit of $4.2 million 32% effective income tax rate in fiscal year 2009 The income tax benefit was

primarily related to $6.2 million tax benefit recorded on the $16.7 million Tender Offer stock-based

compensation acceleration expense discussed above partially offset by income tax expense recorded on

continuing operations We recorded income tax expense of $8.9 million 46% effective income tax rate in

fiscal year 2008 The income tax expense recorded in fiscal year 2008 related to income earned in North

America Due to valuation allowances on certain international deferred tax assets the Company currently

does not recognize reported tax benefit on certain international losses or reported tax expense on certain

international profits These items cause significant difference between the reported effective tax rate and the

statutory tax rate

We have deferred tax assets which have arisen primarily as result of temporary differences between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their related amounts in the financial statements as well as operating

losses incurred in international jurisdictions In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets we consider

whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized and

adjust the valuation allowances accordingly Management judgment is required in determining any valuation

allowance recorded against the gross deferred tax assets As of March 31 2010 the valuation allowance

against deferred tax assets was $2.7 million attributable to net operating loss carryforwards in certain foreign

and certain state jurisdictions as well as U.S federal capital loss carryforwards

The IRS examination of the Companys fiscal year 2008 federal income tax returns was completed

during fiscal year 2010 as was the fiscal year 2007 examination of the Companys Indian subsidiary in India

The adjustments from the IRS and India examinations did not have material impact on the Companys

operations

Discontinued Operations

On July 31 2006 we sold portion of our international operations which included consulting operations

in France Germany Spain Brazil and the United Arab Emirates as part of stock sale agreement Prior to the

stock sale as result of tax inspection of the former Spanish subsidiary for the tax years 1999 to 2000 we

provided bank guarantee in the amount of 4.3 million Euros secured by restricted cash with the Spanish

taxing authority in order to appeal such authoritys assessment The terms of the guarantee require that it be

renewed annually until the results of the appealed tax inspection are settled In accordance with the terms of

the transaction we agreed to indemnify the buyer for any liability
related to this Spanish tax inspection tax

indemnification obligation At the time of the transaction such settlement was not expected before period

of approximately eight years

During fiscal year 2008 the Spanish tax authorities ruled in favor of the Company on portion of the

assessments that were being appealed The appeals of the remaining assessments were based on the same

merits and the Company believed that the tax authorities would rule in favor of the Company on those appeals

As result $3.9 million of the indemnification obligation was reversed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year

2008 In addition the Company also obtained release in June 2008 of $3.1 million of the restricted cash

related to the portion of the assessments that had received favorable ruling

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 the Spanish tax authorities ruled in favor of the Company

on the assessed penalties related to the remaining tax assessments under appeal and indicated that the

remaining underlying tax assessment would receive favorable ruling on the same merits As result the

remaining $0.4 million of the indemnification obligation was reversed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year

2010 As of March 31 2010 $4.1 million of restricted cash which secures the bank guarantee related to the
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tax assessment has been classified as current asset in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet and is

expected to be released in fiscal year 2011

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements we hold shares of Diamonds Common

Stock beneficially owned by third parties in an escrow account for the benefit of recovering from the third

parties portion of any payments made by us under the tax indemnification obligation from the sale

transaction As result of the recent and remaining expected favorable rulings on the assessments that were

appealed the Company no longer expects to recover these shares and intends to release such shares in fiscal

year 2011 as part of the favorable conclusion of the tax assessments The change in the value of the

recoverable escrow shares due to fluctuations in the value of our share price is reflected in income from

discontinued operations on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

The Company recorded $0.3 million charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 to reflect the expected

release of the remaining escrow shares which was offset by the $0.4 million reversal of the indemnification

obligation discussed above

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table describes our liquidity and financial position on March 31 2009 and 2010

March 31

2009 2010

In millions

Working capitall
$55.1 $58.7

Cash and cash equivalents1 46.1 55.8

Restricted cash 4.1 4.1

Stockholders equityl 70.0 69.7

Unutilized bank credit facilities2 $17.8 $12.3

The change in working capital cash and cash equivalents and stockholders equity as of March 31 2010

as compared to March 31 2009 is primarily related to increased net income and positive operating cash

flows during the twelve month period partially offset by cash used for our share repurchase and dividend

programs

The decrease in unutilized bank credit facilities as of March 31 2010 as compared to March 31 2009 is

due to the expiration of the JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A credit agreement and the commencement of our

Harris N.A credit agreement on July 31 2009 Our total borrowing capacity under the Harris N.A credit

agreement is $12.5 million reduced by outstanding letters of credit totaling $0.2 million as of March 31

2010 compared to total borrowing capacity under the JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A credit agreement of

$20.0 million reduced by outstanding letters of credit totaling $2.2 million as of March31 2009 We have

never borrowed against either line of credit

Over the past two years our principal sources of liquidity have consisted of existing cash and cash

equivalents cash flow from operations and proceeds received upon the exercise of stock options by our

employees We anticipate that these sources will provide sufficient liquidity to fund our operating capital

stock repurchase program and Common Stock dividend requirements at least through fiscal year
2011 These

internal sources of liquidity have been adequate to support our operating and capital expenditure requirements

as well as to provide the funding needed for our dividend payments and our stock repurchase program

Our cash is invested in highly-liquid short-term investments with little to no principal risk These

investments must berated either AAA or Al/Pl by Standard Poors Moodys or Fitch Inc We do not invest

in nonconsolidated conduits collateralized debt obligations auction-rate securities or structured investment

vehicles and we do not have any plans to invest in such investments in the foreseeable future
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On June 2009 the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved change in the

Companys dividend schedule from annual to quarterly The Board declared the following quarterly cash

dividends during the fiscal year ended March 31 2010

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

June 30 2009 September 30 2009 December 31 2009 March 31 2010

Declaration date June 2009 August 19 2009 November 11 2009 February 16 2010

Per share dividend $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.07

Record date June 10 2009 September 2009 November 20 2009 February 26 2010

Total amount in thousands $1921 $1911 $1892 $1905

Payment date June 18 2009 September 15 2009 December 2009 March 12 2010

Our Board declared the following annual cash dividends during the fiscal years ended March 31 2008

and 2009 respectively

2008 2009

Declaration date November 2007 November 11 2008

Per share dividend $0.35 $0.35

Record date November 20 2007 November 21 2008

Total amount in thousands $10748 $9032

Payment date December 2007 December 2008

On July 31 2009 the Company entered into credit agreement with Harris N.A Harris Bank to

secure revolving line of credit Pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement the Company may borrow up to

$12.5 million The extensions of credit from Harris Bank may be made in the form of loans and letters of

credit and certain other credit and financial accommodations The Company is required to adhere to certain

operating and financial covenants including minimum net worth of $30.0 million and when borrowing

against the credit facility minimum interest coverage ratio of 1.5 to The minimum interest coverage is

measured as the ratio of earnings before interest and tax expense to interest expense for the past four fiscal

quarters For the fiscal quarters ended September 30 2009 December 31 2009 and March 31 2010

calculation of these amounts shall be from April 2009 through the respective balance sheet date

The annual interest rate under this credit agreement is at the Companys option LIBOR plus one hundred

and twenty five basis points or base rate The base rate is generally defined as the greatest of the prime

rate the sum of the Federal Funds rate plus one half of one percent or the one month LIBOR rate plus

one hundred basis points The Company agrees to pay an annual commitment fee to Harris Bank equal to one-

quarter of one percent on the unused credit facility from August 2009 through the termination date of the

agreement Pursuant to the terms of the agreement outstanding letters of credit issued by Harris Bank for the

Company cannot exceed $2.5 million and any outstanding obligations under the line of credit are secured by

substantially all of the Companys assets As of March 31 2010 the Company had letters of credit

outstanding totaling $0.2 million and there have been no cash borrowings against the line of credit since

it was established The Harris Bank credit agreement expires July 31 2011

As of March 31 2009 and through July 31 2009 the Company maintained revolving line of credit

pursuant to the terms of credit agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A Chase Bank under which

the Company could borrow up to $20.0 million Under the credit agreement the Company was required to

adhere to financial covenants The Chase Bank credit agreement expired on July 31 2009 The Company

never borrowed cash against this line of credit during the two years it was in effect

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 net cash provided by operating activities was $22.4 million

primarily resulting from the net income reported for the period adjusted for depreciation and stock-based

compensation expense and the increase in accrued compensation partially offset by the increase in accounts

receivable and deferred income taxes The change in deferred tax asset includes the impact of $6.1 million

income tax deduction taken in fiscal year 2010 for financial statement purposes
in excess of the deduction for
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tax purposes
This portion of the change in deferred tax asset is not reflected in the Consolidated Statement of

Cash Flows as there was no impact on net income in the current year

Our billings for the fiscal year ended March31 2010 totaled $212.8 million compared to $177.2 million

for the fiscal year ended March 31 2009 The change in billings is due to an increase in consulting services

revenue and reimbursable expenses from revenue generating projects These amounts include value added tax

VAT which is not included in net revenue and billings to clients for reimbursable expenses Our gross

accounts receivable balance of $23.4 million at March 31 2010 represented 35 days of billings for the year

ended March 31 2010 At March 31 2009 the gross receivable balance was $16.4 million which represented

35 days of billings for the year ended March 31 2009 The increase in accounts receivable at March 31 2010

as compared to March 31 2009 was principally due to the higher revenue An increase or decrease in

accounts receivable and days of billings in accounts receivable between periods is primarily the result of the

timing of the collection of payments and issuance of invoices and therefore it is not indicative of trend in

the business

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $1.3 million for capital expenditures in fiscal year 2010 which

primarily consisted of computer hardware and software purchases and capitalized labor costs for the

customization of internal use software

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities was $11.4 million for fiscal year 2010 resulting from Common Stock

cash dividend distributions of $7.6 million the repurchase of Diamond Common Stock totaling $4.9 million

and payment of employee withholding taxes from equity transactions of $0.6 million These were offset by

$1.6 million in proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock in connection with the Employee Stock

Purchase Plan and option exercises and $0.1 million in excess tax benefits from employee stock plans

In February 2008 we completed modified Dutch Auction tender offer and purchased 2.6 million

shares of our Common Stock at purchase price of $6.24 per share for cost of $16.5 million The purchase

price includes costs we recorded for advisory and agent fees related to the tender offer

Contractual Obligations

At March 31 2010 we had the following contractual obligations amounts in thousands

Payments Due By Period

Less Than More Than

Year 1.3 Years 3.5 Years Years Total

Operating leases $1507 $2675 $1993 $6175

Purchase obligations1 2168 923 47 3138

Total2 $3675 $3598 $2040 $9313

Purchase obligations represent minimum commitments owed to third parties including IT maintenance

contracts in support of internal use software and hardware and other marketing and consulting contracts

Contracts for which our commitment is variable based on volumes with no fixed minimum quantities

and contracts that can be cancelled without payment penalties have been excluded Amounts presented

also exclude accounts payable and accrued expenses at March 31 2010

The table excludes our liability
for uncertain tax provisions which totaled $0.6 million as of March 31

2010 since we cannot predict with reasonable reliability the timing of cash settlements to the respective

tax authorities

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements that would have material current or future

impact on our financial condition or results of operations
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Treasury Stock Transactions

The Board has authorized from time to time the repurchase of the Companys Common Stock in the open

market or through privately negotiated transactions During the period beginning with the inception of the Buy-

back Program in October 1998 until the meeting of directors on September 142004 the Board had authorized the

repurchase of up to 6.0 million shares of which 5.3 million shares were repurchased at an aggregate cost of

$70.5 million as of September 14 2004 At the meeting of directors on September 14 2004 the Board restated the

aggregate amount of repurchases that could be made under the Buy-back Program to be based on maximum

dollar amount rather than maximum number of shares The authorization approved the repurchase of shares

under the Buy-back Program having an aggregate market value of no more than $25.0 million In April2005 July

2006 March 2007 and February 2008 the Board authorized the repurchase of an additional $50.0 million

$35.0 million $50.0 million and $25.0 million respectively of shares of the Companys outstanding Common

Stock under the existing Buy-back Program resulting in an aggregate market value of up to $185.0 million in

addition to the 5.3 million shares repurchased prior to September 14 2004 During the fiscal year ended March31

2010 we repurchased 0.8 million shares at an average price of $6.05 resulting in an aggregate cost of $4.9 million

During the period beginning with the inception of the Buy-back Program in October 1998 through March 31

2010 the number of shares repurchased under the current and prior authorizations was 23.4 million shares at an

aggregate cost of $233.4 million and an average price of $9.97 per share As of March 31 2010 the amount

available for repurchase under the Buy-back Program was $22.1 million

The Company in an effort to reduce the treasury share balance decided in the fourth quarter of fiscal

year 2005 to issue treasury shares whenever shares are issued under its equity incentive plans During the

fiscal year ended March 31 2010 the Company issued 0.9 million treasury shares related to RSU vestings

stock option and SAR exercises ESPP purchases and restricted stock grants

Summary

We believe that our current cash balances existing lines of credit and cash flow from existing and future

operations will be sufficient to fund our operating requirements at least through fiscal year 2011 In addition we

could consider seeking additional public or private debt or equity financing to fund future growth opportunities

However there is no assurance that such financing would be available to us on acceptable terms or at all

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

Approximately 10% of our revenues and expenses are generated internationally in the respective

countries of our foreign subsidiaries and are typically denominated in the local currency of each country

Accordingly all foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional currency Our international

business is subject to risks typical of any international business including but not limited to differing

economic conditions changes in political climate differing tax structures other regulations and restrictions

and foreign exchange rate volatility Our future results could be materially adversely impacted by changes in

these or other factors

The financial statements of our non-U.S businesses are typically denominated in the local currency of

the foreign subsidiary As result we are also exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as the financial

results of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars in consolidation As exchange rates fluctuate

these results when translated may vary from expectations and adversely impact overall expected results and

profitability However approximately 90% of our revenues and expenses are denominated in the U.S Dollar

which reduces the extent of foreign currency risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Company invests its cash in highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or

less as well as in other short-term debt instruments The interest rate risk associated with our investing

activities at March 31 2010 is not material in relation to our consolidated financial position results of

operations or cash flows We have not used derivative financial instruments in fiscal year 2010 to alter the

interest rate characteristics of our investment holdings
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item is contained in the consolidated financial statements and schedules

set forth in Item 15a under the captions Financial Statements and Schedules as part of this report

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our senior management including our chief

executive officer and chief financial officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design

and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by

this annual report the Evaluation Date Based on this evaluation our chief executive officer and chief

financial officer concluded as of the Evaluation Date that our disclosure controls and procedures were

effective such that information relating to the Company is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and ii is accumulated and communicated to our

management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15f and Rule 15d-l5f of the Exchange Act Internal control

over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company

ii Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and that

receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the Company and

iii Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisitions use or disposition of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Due to inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk

that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with

the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of our senior management including our chief

executive officer and chief financial officer we assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of March 31 2010 using the criteria set forth in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO
Based on this assessment management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is

effective as of March 31 2010 KPMG LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an

audit report on our internal control over financial reporting which is included herein

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the

evaluation referred to above that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Stockholders and Board of Directors

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc

We have audited Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc.s the Company internal

control over financial reporting as of March 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material

respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing

the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc maintained in all material

respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of March 31 2010 based on criteria in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Diamond Management Technology Consultants

Inc as of March 31 2009 and 2010 the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive

income loss stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

March 31 2010 and the financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index and our reports

dated June 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and

accompanying schedule

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

June 2010
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K incorporates by reference portions of the Registrants

definitive proxy statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days

after the close of its fiscal year provided that if such proxy statement is not filed with the Commission in such

120-day period an amendment to this Form 10-K shall be filed no later than the end of the 120-day period

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information with respect to Directors of the Company will beset forth in the Proxy Statement under the

headings The Board of Directors and its Committees and Election of Directors which information is

incorporated herein by reference or in an amendment to this Form 10-K Information regarding the executive

officers of the Company is included in Part of this Form 10-K as permitted by Instruction to Item 401b of

Regulation S-K Information required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K will be set forth in the Proxy Statement

under the heading Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance which information is

incorporated herein by reference or in an amendment to this Form 10-K

The Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees its Board of

Directors and other representatives The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is supplemented by Code of

Ethics for Senior Financial Officers setting forth additional requirements applicable only to the Companys

senior officers together with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics the Code The Code is re-affirmed

annually by existing employees copy of the Code is filed as Exhibit 14 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information with respect to executive compensation will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the

heading Executive Compensation which information is incorporated herein by reference or in an

amendment to this Form 10-K

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stock

holder Matters

The following table summarizes information about the Companys equity incentive plans as of March31

2010

Number of Number of securities

securities to be remaining available for

issued upon Weighted-average future issuance under

exercise of exercise price of equity compensation

outstanding outstanding plans excluding

options warrants options warrants securities reflected in

Plan Category and rights and rights column

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 55060181 $8.1 12 79311783

Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders
__________ __________

Total 5506018 7931178

Includes 1185369 shares issuable upon vesting of outstanding Stock Awards 3741940 stock-settled

stock appreciation rights SARs and 578709 Stock Options

The weighted-average exercise price does not take into account the shares issuable upon vesting of

outstanding Stock Awards which have no exercise price

Includes 2172355 shares available for future issuance under the Companys Employee Stock Purchase Plan
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Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set

forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock which infor

mation is incorporated herein by reference or in an amendment to this Form 10-K

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions is set forth in Note 17 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements included herein and in the Proxy Statement which information is

incorporated herein by reference or in an amendment to this Form 10-K

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information with respect to principal accountant fees and services will be set forth in the Proxy

Statement under the heading Principal Accountant Fees and Services which information is incorporated

herein by reference or in an amendment to this Form 10-K

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statements and Schedules

The consolidated financial statements and schedules listed in the index on page F- are filed as

part of this Form 10-K

All information for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities

and Exchange Commission is either included in the consolidated financial statements or is not required under

the related instructions or is inapplicable and therefore has been omitted

see above

see below

Exhibits

The following is list of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K filed as part of this Form 10-K

Where so indicated exhibits which were previously filed are incorporated herein by reference For exhibits

incorporated by reference the location of the exhibit in the previous filing is indicated in parentheses

Exhibit

No Description

3.1 Form of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2009 File No 000-22 125 and

incorporated herein by reference

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 File No 000-22 125 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 19 2006 by and between DiamondCluster International B.V

and Mercer Management Consulting Inc filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 File No 000-22 125 and incorporated

herein by reference

10.2 Employment Agreement between each of the Executive Officers and the Company filed as Exhibit

10.2 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31 2006 File No
000-22 125 and incorporated herein by reference

10.3 Partners Operating Agreement dated as of April 2009 filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31 2009 File No 000-22125 and

incorporated herein by reference
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Exhibit

No Description

10.4 2000 Stock Option Plan as amended December 31 2008 filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended December 31 2008 File No 000-22125 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.5 Form of Notices of Grant and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under the 2000 Stock Option Plan

filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended

December 31 2008 File No 000-22125 and incorporated herein by reference

10.6 Employee Stock Purchase Plan filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

l0-Q for the period ended September 30 2008 File No 000-22125 and incorporated herein by

reference

10.7 Summary of Outside Director Board Compensation filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the period ended September 30 2008 File No 000-22 125 and

incorporated herein by reference

10.8 Credit Agreement between the Company and Harris N.A dated July 31 2009

14 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Supplemental Code of Ethics for Senior Financial

Officers

21 Subsidiaries of the Company

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Power of Attorney included on signature page

31.1 Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a/l 5d-1 4a as

adopted pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a/15d-l4a as adopted

pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as

adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant

to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

D1AMo MANAGEMENT TEcnroLociY CONSULTANTS INC

By Is ADAM GUTSTEIN

Adam Gutstein

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date June 2010

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below

constitutes and appoints Adam Gutstein his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent with full power of

substitution for him and in his name place and stead in any and all capacities to sign any and all

amendments including post-effective amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the

same with all exhibits thereto and all documents in connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange

Commission granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each

and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises as fully to all intents and

purposes as he might or could do in person hereby ratifying and confirming all that each said attorney-in-fact

and agent or his or their substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below

by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is ADAM GUTSTEIN President and Chief Executive Officer June 2010

Adam Gutstein Principal Executive Officer Director

/s KARL Bu Chief Financial Officer Principal June 2010

Karl Bupp
Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Is JOHN SvIoKlA Vice Chairman and Director June 2010

John Sviokla

Is EDWARD ANDERSON Director June 2010

Edward Anderson

/s MELVYN BERGSTEIN Director and Chairman June 2010

Melvyn Bergstein

Is DONALD CALDwELL Director June 2010

Donald CaIdwell

/s MICHAEL MIKOLAJCZYK Director June 2010

Michael Mikolajczyk
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Is MICHAEL MosKow Director June 2010

Michael Moskow

Is JAVIER RUBI0 Director June 2010

Javier Rubio

Is PAULINE SCHNEIDER Director June 2010

Pauline Schneider
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Stockholders and Board of Directors

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Diamond Management Tech

nology Consultants Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of March 31 2009 and 2010 and the related

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income loss stockholders equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31 2010 These consolidated financial statements

are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

consolidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc and subsidiaries as

of March 31 2009 and 2010 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the

three-year period ended March 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the effectiveness of Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc.s internal

control over financial reporting as of March 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO and our report dated June 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

June 2010
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31 2009 and 2010

2009 2010

In thousands

except per share data

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 46112

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable net of allowance of $566 and $477 as of March 31
2009 and 2010 respectively 15872

Deferred tax asset current portion 6747

Prepaid expenses 1323

Other current assets 1479
__________

Total current assets 71533

Restricted cash 4099

Computers equipment leasehold improvements and software net 4280

Deferred tax asset long-term portion 7757

Other assets 1480
_________

Total assets 89149
_________

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation

Deferred revenue

Accrued benefits

Income taxes payable current portion

Other accrued liabilities
_________ _________

Total current liabilities

Deferred rent long term portion

Accrued income tax liabilities long-term portion

Net tax indemnification obligation _________ _________

Total liabilities
_________ _________

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Preferred Stock $1.00 par value 2000 shares authorized no shares issued

Common Stock $0.00 par value 300000 and 100000 shares authorized

40087 and 40082 shares issued as of March 31 2009 and 2010

respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accumulated deficit
_________ _________

Less Common Stock in treasury at cost 12885 and 12830 shares held at

March 31 2009 and 2010 respectively ________ ________

Total stockholders equity ________ ________

Total liabilities and stockholders equity _________

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Current liabilities

4595

4269

722

2481

1493

2901

16461

1593

687

368

19109

55834

4104

22947

6888

1594

1472

92839

3667

7911

1584

$106001

5613

17741

1358

2355

2752

4274

34093

1613

585

36291

40

615467

4423
437517

173567

103857

69710

$106001

40

622967

4636
442261

176110

106070

70040

89149
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSiVE IINCOME LOSS
Fiscal Years ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010

2008 2009 2010

In thousands except per share data

Revenue

Net revenue $182288 $152166 $177245

Reimbursable expenses 22768 22812 32699

Total revenue 205056 174978 209944

Project personnel expenses
Project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses 125772 113703 126926

Reimbursable expenses 22768 22812 32699

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer 14290
________

Total project personnel expenses 148540 150805 159625

Gross margin 56516 24173 50319

Other operating expenses
Professional development and recruiting 9420 6716 5580

Marketing and sales 4451 3103 3288

Management and administrative support 26947 25846 25798

Stock-based compensation acceleration tender offer 2402

Restructuring recovery ________
284

Total other operating expenses 40818 37783 34666

Income loss from operations 15698 13610 15653
Interest income 3323 957 121

Interest expense 93 173 71
Other income expense net 180 128 74

Total other income net 3410 656 124

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes 19108 12954 15777

Income tax expense benefit 8873 4156 3666

Income loss from continuing operations after income taxes 10235 8798 12111

Discontinued operations

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations including income tax benefit

of $0 for the fiscal years ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010

respectively 7000
Income from discontinued operations including income tax benefit of

$0 $575 and $0 for the fiscal years ended March 31 2008 2009 and

2010 respectively 3859 400 262

Income from discontinued operations net of income taxes 10859 400 262

Net income loss 21094 8398 12373

Foreign currency translation adjustments 27 1869 214

Unrealized loss on investment 19
Comprehensive income loss 21117 $lO286 12586

Basic income loss per share of Common Stock

Income loss from continuing operations 0.34 0.34 0.45

Income from discontinued operations 0.36 0.02 0.01

Net income loss 0.70 0.32 0.46

Diluted income loss per share of Common Stock
Income loss from continuing operations 0.33 0.34 0.44

Income from discontinued operations 0.34 0.02 0.01

Net income loss 0.67 0.32 0.45

Shares used in computing basic income loss per share of Common Stock 30200 26209 27139

Shares used in computing diluted income loss per share of Common Stock 31492 26209 27632

Excluding the stock-based compensation expense SBC associated with the tender offer the following amounts of

SBC are included in each of the respective expense categories reported above

2008 2009 2010

Project personnel costs before reimbursable expenses $15059 $11687 $3411
Professional development and recruiting 124 110 42

Marketing and sales 332 265 413

Management and administrative support 2841 2861 1495

Total SBC $18356 $14923 $5361

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Fiscal years ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010

18356

2132

3436

24243

281

$622849

31615

18

2675

27533

3341

9032
8398

$442261 $106070 $4636

7085

7629
12373

$437517 $103857 $4423

10748
21094

74852

31615

18

2675

3341
13145

2034

19
1869

9032
8398

70040

5361

217

806

6555
4872

1368

214

7629
12373

69710

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Common Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders

Stock Capital Deficit Stock Income Loss Equity

In thousands

$40 $627599 $435177 93764 $2771 95927

18356

2132

3436

24243

281

50937 50937
2160

27 27

2160

$40

10748
21094

$424831 $120458

Balance at March 31 2007

Issuance forfeiture and cancellation of

stock

Stock-based compensation

Exercise of stock options

Shares withheld for taxes

Issuance of treasury stock under equity

incentive plans

Income tax expense related to stock-based

compensation net of adjustments

Purchase of treasury stock

Employee stock purchase plan

Unrealized loss on investment

Translation adjustment

Dividend paid on Common Stock $0.35 per

share

Net income

Balance at March 31 2008

Stock-based compensation

Exercise of stock options

Shares withheld for taxes

Issuance of treasury stock under equity

incentive plans

Income tax expense related to stock-based

compensation net of adjustments

Purchase of treasury stock

Employee stock purchase plan

Unrealized loss on investment

Translation adjustment

Dividend paid on Common Stock $0.35 per

share

Net loss

Balance at March 31 2009

Stock-based compensation

Exercise of stock options

Shares withheld for taxes

Issuance of treasury stock under equity

incentive plans

Income tax expense related to stock-based

compensation net of adjustments

Purchase of treasury stock

Employee stock purchase plan

Unrealized loss on investment

Translation adjustment

Dividend paid on Common Stock $0.07 per

share per quarter

Net income

Balance at March 31 2010

$2748

27533

13145
2034

19
1869

$622967

5361

217

806

7085

6555
4872

1368

214

$40 $615467
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS1
Fiscal Years ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010

2008 2009 2010

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 21094 8398 12373

Adjustments to reconcile income loss to net cash provided by

operating activities

Restructuring recovery 284

Depreciation and amortization 1550 1801 1639

Stock-based compensation 18356 31615 5361

Gain on sale of discontinued operations 7000
Deferred income taxes 254 5783 6385
Excess tax benefits from employee stock plans 1220 307 123
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 1742 3332 6978
Prepaid expenses and other 89 216 103
Accounts payable 693 1730 1300

Accrued compensation 3261 344 13526

Restructuring accrual 221 55
Deferred revenue 339 369 655

Income taxes payable 429 2244 706

Other assets and liabilities 4799 354 433

Net cash provided by operating activities 26001 14600 22404

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease increase in restricted cash 132 3082

Distribution from available-for-sale investments 289

Net proceeds from sale of discontinued operations 7000

Capital expenditures net 3066 1642 1272
Other assets 44

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 3846 1729 1277

Cash flows from financing activities

Stock option and employee stock purchase plan proceeds 4292 2052 1585

Payment of employee withholding taxes from equity transactions 3436 2675 647
Common stock cash dividends 10748 9032 7629
Excess tax benefits from employee stock plans 1220 307 123

Purchase of treasury stock 52110 13145 4872

Net cash used in financing activities 60782 22493 11440

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 77 991 35

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 30858 7155 9722

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 84125 53267 46112

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 53267 46112 55834

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for interest 110 81

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 9530 3323 9153

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows is prepared on combined basis and the reported results

include both continuing and discontinued operations for the fiscal years ended March 31 2008 2009 and

2010

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description of the Business and Basis of Presentation

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc including as the context requires its wholly-

owned subsidiaries the Company Diamond is management and technology consulting firm

Diamond helps leading organizations worldwide to understand and leverage technology to realize value

in their businesses Recognizing that information and technology shape market dynamics Diamonds small

teams of experts work across functional and organizational boundaries to improve growth and profitability

Since the greatest value in strategy and its highest risk resides in its implementation Diamond also

provides proven execution capabilities Diamond delivers three critical elements to every project fact-based

objectivity spirited collaboration and sustainable results

In March 2006 the Companys Board of Directors Board approved strategy to focus the Company

on its markets in North America the United Kingdom U.K and India and committed to sell portion of its

international operations On July 31 2006 under the terms of stock sale agreement the Company sold

portion of its international operations which included consulting operations in France Germany Spain

Brazil and the United Arab Emirates agreement and as result these are reported as discontinued

operations in the financial statements and related notes North America the U.K and India are considered

continuing operations The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is prepared on combined basis

continuing operations plus discontinued operations for all periods presented All analytical and statistical

references refer to data from continuing operations only unless otherwise stated

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2010 the Company generated net revenue of $177.2 million from

88 clients At March 31 2010 the Company employed 527 consultants and 116 operations employees The

Companys operations are comprised of six offices in North America Europe and Asia which include

Chicago Hartford London Mumbai New York City and Washington D.C

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles

Cash inflows and outflows of $6.1 million were reclassified from deferred tax assets and income taxes

payable respectively within the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31 2010

The reclassification had no impact on net cash provided by operating activities

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its

majority-owned subsidiaries All intercompany accounts and balances have been eliminated in consolidation

Foreign Currency Translation and Revaluation

All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the

balance sheet date Revenues costs and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during

the period The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as separate component of stockholders

equity

Foreign currency transaction gains losses net are included in Other income expense net and totaled

$168 thousand $424 thousand and $80 thousand for fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue from range of consulting services including helping organizations

worldwide to develop and implement growth strategies improve operations and capitalize on technology

Total revenues are comprised of professional fees for services rendered to clients plus reimbursement of
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

out-of-pocket expenses and exclude applicable taxes The Company bills clients for services and expenses

incurred either monthly or semi-monthly in accordance with the terms of the client engagement agreement

Prior to the commencement of client engagement the Company and the client agree on fees for services

based upon the scope of the project staffing requirements and the level of client involvement Revenue is

recognized over the term of the client engagement based on the proportion of services performed by each

member of the engagement team during the period relative to the estimated total effort required to perform the

project Unbilled receivables represent revenues earned for services performed or reimbursable expenses

incurred that have not been billed as of the balance sheet date

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Deferred Revenue

Management makes estimates of the amount of billed and unbilled accounts receivable that may not be

collected from clients In making these estimates management specifically analyzes individual client

balances the composition of the aging of accounts receivable historical bad debts customer credit

worthiness and current economic trends and considers the Companys overall experience with estimating

uncollectible amounts As of March 31 2010 the accounts receivable balance was $22.9 million including

unbilled accounts receivable of $7.8 million and net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $0.5 million

Unbilled accounts receivable are typically billed the following month

Provisions are also made for estimated costs to be incurred subsequent to targeted project completion

These provisions are estimated based principally on historical experience and review of projects in progress

and are reflected net of actual costs incurred on completed projects in deferred revenue Although from time

to time the Company has been required to make revisions to clients estimated deliverables to date there have

been no such revisions that have had material effect on the Companys operating results The deferred

revenue balance was $1.4 million as of March 31 2010 The balance was primarily comprised of the

estimated gross amount of services to be rendered subsequent to the targeted completion date as well as

prepaid client fees related to consulting services that the Company expects to earn in future periods

Stock-based Compensation

The Company has adopted various stock incentive and option plans that authorize the granting of

qualified and non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights SAR5 and Stock Awards restricted

stock and restricted stock units RSUs to officers and employees and non-qualified stock options SARs

and Stock Awards to certain persons who were not employees on the date of grant including non-employee

members of the Companys Board of Directors

The Company recognizes the cost of all share based compensation arrangements in the financial

statements based on their fair value Share-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the

fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period Determining the fair

value of share-based awards at the grant date requires judgment including estimating the amount of expected

dividends Additionally expected forfeitures are estimated in determining stock-based compensation

expense If actual forfeitures differ from the estimates the difference is recorded in the period in which

it occurs

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and are

stated at cost which approximates fair value Cash equivalents consist of money market funds and short term

time deposits
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Long-Lived Assets

Computers and equipment leasehold improvements and software are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization are computed by applying the straight-line

method over the estimated useful lives of assets which range from eighteen months to five years for

computers and equipment the lesser of the lease term or the life of the asset generally five years for

leasehold improvements and three to five years for software When an asset is sold or retired the cost and

related accumulated depreciation is relieved and the resulting gain or loss if any is recognized in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss

Costs Incurred to Develop Software for Internal Use

The Company capitalizes certain internal and external costs incurred to develop software for internal

use which are comprised of employee salaries and third-party consulting fees incurred during the application

development stage of the project to develop and implement the internal-use software Such capitalized costs

are amortized over the five year estimated life of the software using the straight-line method once the software

is placed into service

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss consists of cumulative foreign currency translation

adjustments and cumulative unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities net of the related tax

effect As of March 31 2009 and 2010 the accumulated balances of unrealized gains and losses on

available-for-sale securities were not significant

Financial Instruments and Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of market or

credit risk consist principally of cash equivalent instruments and accounts receivable The Company places

its cash equivalent balances with reputable financial institutions and invests in instruments issued by highly

rated institutions Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates fair value and investments are

carried at fair value The fair values of the Companys financial instruments approximates their carrying

value

Trade receivables potentially subject the Company to credit risk The Company extends credit to its

customers based upon an evaluation of the customers financial condition and credit history and generally

does not require collateral The Company has historically incurred minimal credit losses The Company had

one client that accounted for 12% of revenue for the fiscal year ended March 31 2008 but no clients that

individually accounted for more than 10% of revenue in fiscal years 2009 and 2010 The Company had one

client with an outstanding balance that represented 19% of accounts receivable as of March 31 2009 and two

clients with an outstanding balance that represented 10% and 12% of accounts receivable as of March 31

2010

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and the
liability

method Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and net operating

loss and credit carryforward Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected

to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be reversed or

settled

The Company establishes liabilities or reduces assets for uncertain tax positions when the Company does

not believe that it is more likely than not that certain tax positions may be capable of being sustained upon
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

audit The amount we recognize is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent

likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement We record
liability

for the difference between the benefit

recognized within the financial statements and the tax position taken or expected to be taken on our tax return

To the extent that our assessment of such tax positions changes the change in estimate is recorded in the

period in which the determination is made

Taxes Remitted to Government Authorities

The Company collects various value added taxes on consulting services which are accounted for on net

basis Neither the taxes collected from customers nor the tax payments to the respective Governmental

Authorities are presented in the Net Revenue line item within the Consolidated Statement of Operations

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting prin

ciples requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the amounts of revenues and expenses

during the period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective April 2009 the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Staff

Position FSP No 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 codified in Accounting Standards

Codification ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements which deferred the implementation of SFAS No 157

Fair Value Measurements codified in ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements for nonfinancial assets and

nonfinancial liabilities except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in an entitys financial

statements on recurring basis at least annually The adoption of FSP No 157-2 did not have an impact on

the Companys financial condition or results of operations

Effective April 2009 the Company adopted FASB Staff Position Emerging Issues Task Force FSP
EITF 03-6-1 Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are

Participating Securities codified in ASC 260 Earnings Per Share According to FSP EITF 03-6-1

unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents

are participating securities and should be included in the computation of earnings per share using the two-

class method as described in SFAS No 128 Earnings per Share codified in ASC 260 Earnings Per

Share The adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-I did not have material impact on the Companys financial

condition or results of operations

Effective April 2009 the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS
No 165 Subsequent Events codified in ASC 855 Subsequent Events which establishes general

standards of accounting and disclosure for events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the

financial statements are issued The adoption of SFAS No 165 did not have an impact on the Companys

financial condition or results of operations

Effective July 2009 the Company adopted SFAS No 168 The FASB Accounting Standards

Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles codified in ASC 105

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codifi

cation as the source of authoritative U.S generally accepted accounting principles to be applied by

nongovernmental entities The Accounting Standards Codification supersedes all existing non-SEC account

ing and reporting standards The adoption of SFAS No 168 did not have an impact on the Companys

financial condition or results of operations

Effective January 2010 the Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update ASU
No 20 10-09 Subsequent Events Topic 855 Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Requirements ASU 2010-09 ASU 2010-09 amends ASC 855 Subsequent Events such that SEC filers

no longer are required to disclose the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated in originally

issued and revised financial statements The adoption of ASU 2010-09 did not have an impact on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued FASB ASU No 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU 2010-06 ASU 2010-06

requires new disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements and provides clarification

over certain existing fair value measurement disclosure requirements On April 2010 the Company will

adopt the provisions of FASB ASU 20 10-06 and does not expect the adoption to have an impact on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations

Discontinued Operations

On July 31 2006 the Company sold portion of its international operations which included consulting

operations in France Germany Spain Brazil and the United Arab Emirates as part of stock sale agreement

Prior to the stock sale as result of tax inspection of the former Spanish subsidiary for the tax years 1999 to

2000 the Company provided bank guarantee in the amount of 4.3 million Euros secured by restricted cash

with the Spanish taxing authority in order to appeal such authoritys assessment In accordance with the terms

of the transaction the Company agreed to indemnify the buyer for any liability
related to this Spanish tax

inspection tax indemnification obligation The terms of the guarantee require that it be renewed annually

until the results of the appealed tax inspection are settled At the time of the transaction such settlement was

not expected before period of approximately eight years

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008 the Spanish tax authorities ruled in favor of the Company

on portion of the assessments that were being appealed The remaining assessments under appeal were

based on the same merits and the Company believed that the tax authorities would rule in favor of the

Company on those appeals As result $3.9 million of the indemnification obligation was reversed during the

fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008 In addition the Company also obtained release in June 2008 of

$3.1 million of the restricted cash related to the portion of the assessments that had received favorable

ruling

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010 the Spanish tax authorities ruled in favor of the Company

on the assessed penalties related to the remaining tax assessments under appeal and indicated that the

remaining underlying tax assessment would receive favorable ruling on the same merits As result the

remaining $0.4 million of the indemnification obligation was reversed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year

2010 As of March 31 2010 $4.1 million of restricted cash which secures the bank guarantee related to the

tax assessment has been classified as current asset in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet and is

expected to be released in fiscal year 2011

The Company holds shares of Diamonds Common Stock beneficially owned by third parties in an

escrow account for the benefit of recovering from the third parties portion of any payments made by the

Company under the tax indemnification obligation from the sale transaction As result of the recent and

remaining expected favorable rulings on the assessments that were appealed the Company no longer expects

to recover these shares and intends to release such shares in fiscal year 2011 as part of the favorable

conclusion of the tax assessments The Company recorded $0.3 million charge in the fourth quarter of fiscal

year 2010 to reflect the expected release of the remaining escrow shares which was offset by the $0.4 million

reversal of the indemnification obligation discussed above
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DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Geographic Data

The Company operates only in one segment providing management and technology consulting services

Even though the Company has different legal entities operating in various countries its operations and

management are performed on global basis

Data for the geographic regions in which the Company operates is presented below for the periods

presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income Loss and the Con

solidated Balance Sheets in thousands

2008 2009 2010

Net revenue

North America $166497 $135546 $159944

United Kingdom and India 15791 16620 17301

Total net revenue $182288 $152166 $177245

Long-lived assets as of March 31
North America 5264 5176 4741

United Kingdom and India 863 584 615

Total long-lived assets 6127 5760 5356

The segregation of revenue by geographic region is based upon the location of the legal entity

performing the services The Company had one client that accounted for 12% of revenue for the fiscal

year ended March 31 2008 and no clients that individually accounted for more than 10% of revenue in fiscal

years 2009 and 2010

Restricted Cash

The Company initially deposited $5.5 million in U.S Dollar denominated bank account during the

fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006 to support the 4.3 million Euros bank guarantee described in Note above

Based upon the terms of the restrictions on the use of the pledged cash the Company has reported these funds

as restricted cash on the Consolidated Balance Sheets As result of favorable ruling received in the fourth

quarter of fiscal year 2010 the restricted cash is expected to be released during fiscal year 2011 and has

therefore been reclassified from non-current to current assets as of March 31 2010 The terms of the bank

guarantee require that it be renewed annually until the appealed tax inspection is concluded see further

discussion of the tax inspection in Note above Restricted cash totaled $4.1 million at March 31 2009

and 2010

Computers Equipment Leasehold Improvements and Software Net

Computers equipment leasehold improvements and software net at March 31 2009 and 2010 are

summarized as follows amounts in thousands

2009 2010

Computers and equipment 5628 5783

Leasehold improvements 5239 5303

Software 8347 7769

19214 18855

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 14934 15188

4280 3667
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Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities at March 31 2009 and 2010 are summarized as follows amounts in thousands

2009 2010

Accrued employee expenses
$1140 $1473

Other accrued liabilities 1761 2801

Total $2901 $4274

Commitments Guarantees and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office space and equipment under various non-cancelable operating leases The

Companys London office operating lease was scheduled to expire in December 2009 The Company renewed

its London office operating lease in December 2009 which contractually requires total of $1.5 million in

future estimated lease payments for the period April 2010 through December 31 2014

As of March 31 2010 the minimum future lease payments under operating leases with non-cancelable

terms in excess of one year are as follows amounts in thousands

Fiscal Year Ending March 31

2011 $1507

2012 1285

2013 1390

2014 1441

2015 552

Thereafter _______

Total $6175

Rent expense under operating leases amounted to $2.9 million $2.3 million and $1.8 million for the

years ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010 respectively

The Company is party to standby letters of credit that secure the Companys office leases These standby

letters of credit totaled $0.2 million as of March 31 2010

Guarantees

On January 2006 the Company provided an initial bank guarantee with the Spanish taxing authority in

the amount of 4.3 million Euros secured by restricted cash The bank guarantee was made as result of tax

inspection of former Spanish subsidiary for the tax years 1999 to 2000 in order to appeal such authoritys

assessment The bank guarantee is discussed in more detail in Note Discontinued Operations

Legal Contingencies

From time to time the Company is involved in various legal matters arising out of the ordinary course of

business Although the outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined the Company does not

believe that these matters will have material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations

of the Company
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10 Line of Credit

On July 31 2009 the Company entered into credit agreement with Harris N.A Harris Bank to

secure revolving line of credit Pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement the Company may borrow up to

$12.5 million The extensions of credit from Harris Bank may be made in the form of loans and letters of

credit and certain other credit and financial accommodations The Company is required to adhere to certain

operating and financial covenants including minimum net worth of $30.0 million and when borrowing

against the credit facility minimum interest coverage ratio of 1.5 to The minimum interest coverage is

measured as the ratio of earnings before interest and tax expense to interest expense for the past four fiscal

quarters For the fiscal quarters ended September 30 2009 December 31 2009 and March 31 2010

calculation of these amounts shall be from April 2009 through the respective balance sheet date

The annual interest rate under this credit agreement is at the Companys option LIBOR plus one hundred

and twenty five basis points or base rate The base rate is generally defined as the greatest of the prime

rate the sum of the Federal Funds rate plus one half of one percent or the one month LIBOR rate plus

one hundred basis points The Company agrees to pay an annual commitment fee to Harris Bank equal to one-

quarter of one percent on the unused credit facility from August 2009 through the termination date of the

agreement Pursuant to the terms of the agreement outstanding letters of credit issued by Harris Bank for the

Company cannot exceed $2.5 million and any outstanding obligations under the line of credit are secured by

substantially all of the Companys assets As of March 31 2010 the Company had letters of credit

outstanding totaling $0.2 million and there have been no cash borrowings against the line of credit since

it was established The Harris Bank credit agreement expires July 31 2011

As of March 31 2009 and through July 31 2009 the Company maintained revolving line of credit

pursuant to the terms of credit agreement with JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A Chase Bank under which

the Company could borrow up to $20.0 million Under the credit agreement the Company was required to

adhere to financial covenants The Chase Bank credit agreement expired on July 31 2009 The Company

never borrowed cash against this line of credit during the two years it was in effect

11 Income Loss Per Share

Basic income loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding Diluted income loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common

shares outstanding and where dilutive the assumed exercise of stock options and SARs and vesting of

restricted stock and restricted stock units using the treasury stock method Following is reconciliation of

the shares in thousands used in computing basic and diluted net income loss per share for the fiscal years

ended March 31 2008 2009 and 2010

Fiscal Year Ended March 31

2008 2009 2010

Shares used in computing basic income loss per share 30200 26209 27139

Dilutive effect of stock options SARs and restricted

stock/units 1292
______

493

Shares used in computing diluted income loss per share 31492 26209 27632

Antidilutive securities not included in dilutive net income loss

per share calculation 2448 6436 4866

Potentially dilutive shares not included due to loss for fiscal

year 1183
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12 Stockholders Equity

Dividend Distribution

On June 2009 the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved change in the

Companys dividend schedule from annual to quarterly The Board declared the following quarterly cash

dividends during the fiscal year ended March 31 2010

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended Three Months Ended

June 30 2009 September 30 2009 December 31 2009 March 31 2010

Declaration date June 12009 August 19 2009 November 11 2009 February 16 2010

Per share dividend $0.07 $0.07 $0.07 $0.07

Record date June 10 2009 September 2009 November 20 2009 February 26 2010

Total amount in

thousands $1921 $1911 $1892 $1905

Payment date June 18 2009 September 15 2009 December 2009 March 12 2010

The Companys Board declared the following annual cash dividends during the fiscal years ended

March 31 2008 and 2009 respectively

2008 2009

Declaration date November 2007 November 11 2008

Per share dividend $0.35 $0.35

Record date November 20 2007 November 21 2008

Total amount in thousands $10748 $9032

Payment date December 2007 December 2008

Stock Repurchases

In February 2008 the Company completed modified Dutch Auction tender offer and purchased

2.6 million shares of the Companys Common Stock at purchase price of $6.24 per share for cost of

$16.5 million The purchase price includes costs the Company recorded for advisory and agent fees related to

the tender offer

The Board has authorized from time to time the repurchase of the Companys Common Stock in the

open market or through privately negotiated transactions During the period beginning with the inception of

the Buy-back Program in October 1998 until the meeting of directors on September 14 2004 the Board had

authorized the repurchase of up to 6.0 million shares of which 5.3 million shares were repurchased at an

aggregate cost of $70.5 million as of September 142004 At the meeting of directors on September 142004

the Board restated the aggregate amount of repurchases that could be made under the Buy-back Program to be

based on maximum dollar amount rather than maximum number of shares The authorization approved the

repurchase of shares under the Buy-back Program having an aggregate market value of no more than

$25.0 million In April 2005 July 2006 March 2007 and February 2008 the Board authorized the repurchase

of an additional $50.0 million $35.0 million $50.0 million and $25.0 million respectively of shares of the

Companys outstanding Common Stock under the existing Buy-back Program resulting in an aggregate

market value of up to $185.0 million in addition to the 5.3 million shares repurchased prior to September 14

2004 During the period beginning with the inception of the Buy-back Program in October 1998 and through

March 31 2010 the number of shares repurchased under the current and prior authorizations was 23.4 million

shares at an aggregate cost of $233.4 million or an average price of $9.97 per share Following is summary
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31

2010

2009

2008

2007

Inception to 2006

Total

Repurchases of Common Stock

Shares Amount Average Price

805 4872 6.05

2664 13145 4.93

6296 50937 8.09

3341 37465 $11.21

10307 $127021 $12.32

23413 $233440 9.97

In an effort to reduce the treasury share balance the Company began issuing treasury shares under its

equity incentive plans in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005 Through March 31 2010 the Company has

issued 10.6 million treasury shares

Following is summary of common and treasury stock activity for the fiscal years ended March 31

2008 2009 and 2010 in thousands of shares

Balance at March 31 2007

Issued

Equity incentive plans

Treasury Stock

Repurchases

Shares withheld under equity incentive plans

Retirement

Balance at March 31 2008

Issued

Equity incentive plans

Treasury Stock

Repurchases

Shares withheld under equity incentive plans

Retirement

Balance at March 31 2009

Issued

Equity incentive plans

Treasury Stock

Repurchases

Shares withheld under equity incentive plans

Retirement

Balance at March 31 2010

2664

900

900

12885 27202

DIAMOND MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGY CONSULTANTS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

of the repurchase activity since inception of the Buy-back Program amounts in thousands except average

price data

Common Stock

Held in

Issued Treasury
_______

40023 8325

647 1685

6296

646

646 646

40024 12936

963 2715

Net

31698

27088

900

40087

126 861

805

131

131 131

40082 12830 27252
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13 Stock Plans

Share-Based Plans

The Company issues stock-based awards under the 2000 Stock Option Plan 2000 Plan or Equity

Incentive Plan which is shareholder approved Under the 2000 Plan 8.5 million shares were authorized for

grant and at March 31 2010 approximately 5.8 million shares were available for future grant Awards that

expire or are cancelled without delivery of shares become available for issuance under the Equity Incentive

Plans

Net income loss for fiscal years 20082009 and 2010 includes $18.4 million $31.6 million including

$16.7 million related to the Tender Offer and $5.4 million respectively of compensation costs related to our

stock-based compensation arrangements with income tax benefits recognized in fiscal years 2008 2009 and

2010 of $6.7 million $11.4 million and $2.8 million respectively As of March 31 2010 unrecognized

compensation cost net of estimated forfeitures related to the unvested portion of share-based compensation

arrangements was approximately $8.7 million and is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of approximately 2.9 years

During fiscal year 2009 the Company commenced an Offer to exchange up to 2265261 unvested

employee Restricted Stock Units Eligible RSUs for shares of its Common Stock par value $0001 per

share at an exchange ratio of 0.80 shares per each Eligible RSU less any shares withheld to satisfy any

applicable taxes and without interest Offer The Offer provided employees the opportunity to exchange

the Eligible RSUs granted to them pursuant to annual awards related to fiscal years 2005 2006 2007 and

2008 that were not vested and were not scheduled to vest prior to March 2009 for 0.80 shares of the

Companys Common Stock Total Eligible RSUs tendered were 2.2 million and 1.7 million shares of

Common Stock were issued from the Companys treasury shares The shares are subject to restriction on

sale or transfer with such restrictions lapsing over minimum period of approximately six months and up to

maximum period of approximately four years based on the level of the employee

The Offer as described herein qualified as modification under ASC 718 Compensation-Stock

Compensation since the shares issued in the Offer were fully vested The modification resulted in the

expensing of the previously unrecognized compensation expense attributable to the tendered RSUs that were

exchanged for issued common shares on the date of the Offers expiration The Company recorded additional

stock-based compensation expense of $16.7 million related to the Offer as well as an income tax benefit of

$6.2 million in fiscal year 2009

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units Stock Awards

The Equity Incentive Plan authorizes the granting of Stock Awards Restricted Stock and Restricted

Stock Units RSU5 to officers employees and certain individuals who are not employees of the Company

These Stock Awards are granted at no cost to the individual They are subject to vesting terms at which point

Common Stock is issued if the individual holds an RSU or the restrictions on sale of the Common Stock lapse

if the individual holds restricted stock Stock Awards generally vest over five years for partners and four years

for other employees The Company allocates the cost of Stock Awards on straight-line basis over the vesting

period Stock Awards granted with performance acceleration clause are expensed over the vesting term of

each separately vesting portion Accelerated Expense Recognition Method

During fiscal year 2010 the Company issued 0.8 million Stock Awards principally as part of the fiscal

year 2009/2010 performance review process

During fiscal year 2009 the Company issued 1.5 million Stock Awards principally as part of the fiscal

year 2008 performance review process

During fiscal year 2008 the Company issued 2.2 million Stock Awards principally as part of the fiscal

year 2007 performance review process
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The following table summarizes the status of the Companys non-vested Stock Awards

Non-Vested Weighted-

Stock Average

Awards Grant-Date

In thousands Fair Value

Non-vested at March 31 2007 3628 $10.01

Ciranted 2170 9.95

Vested 1348 10.08

Forfeited 704 10.15

Non-vested at March 31 2008 3746 9.92

Granted 1485 5.31

Vested in tender offer 1727 8.91

Vested 1311 9.59

Forfeited in tender offer 431 8.91

Forfeited 706 9.36

Non-vested at March 31 2009 1056 7.49

Granted 813 5.86

Vested 500 7.68

Forfeited 85 7.51

Non-vested at March 31 2010 1284 6.38

The total fair value of Stock Awards vested during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 was $12.4 million

$9.7 million and $3.1 million respectively For non-vested Stock Awards at March 31 2010 the aggregate

intrinsic value was $10.1 million and the weighted-average remaining contractual term was 3.5 years

Stock Options and SARs

The Equity Incentive Plans authorize the granting of qualified and non-qualified stock options and stock

appreciation rights SARs to officers and employees and non-qualified stock options and SARs to certain

persons who were not employees on the date of grant including certain non-employee members of the Board

of Directors All such options are for shares of Common Stock The Equity Incentive Plans provide that the

exercise price of the stock options will be determined based on the average of the closing price of share of

Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market System for the ten trading days immediately

preceding the date of grant Options/SARs granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan can have an exercise

price that is below the fair market value on the date of grant of which there are none to date SARs entitle

grantees to receive Common Stock with value equal to the increase in the fair market value of the Common

Stock from the date of grant to the date of exercise Options/SARs granted to partners generally vest over five

years and expire six months after the last vest date Options/SARs granted to other employees generally vest

over four years and expire six months after the last vest date SARs and options granted to Board members

vest quarterly over one year and expire five years after the last vest date Options and SARs with graded

vesting expensed under ASC 718 Compensation-Stock Compensation are expensed using the Accelerated

Expense Recognition Method Options and SARs granted since the adoption of SFAS No l23R April

2005 codified in ASC 718 Compensation-Stock Compensation are expensed on straight-line basis over

the vesting term except those with performance acceleration clause which follow the Accelerated Expense

Recognition Method

During fiscal year 2010 the Company granted 0.2 million options and no SARs

During fiscal year 2009 the Company granted 3.1 million SARs and 0.3 million options
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During fiscal year 2008 the Company did not grant any SARs or options

The fair value of each SAR/option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option

valuation model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table Expected volatility is based on the

historical volatility of the Companys stock among other factors The expected life estimated period of time

outstanding was estimated using historical exercise behavior of employees The risk-free rate is based on the

U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

2008 2009 2010

Expected volatility
n/a 50% 51% 54%

Weighted-average volatility n/a 50% 54%

Expected dividend yield n/a 5.6% 5.9% 4.1%

Average expected life in years
n/a 3.58 4.96

Risk-free interest rate n/a 2.26% 2.9% 2.16%

Weighted-average grant date fair value of options/SARs

granted
nla $1.59 $2.41

The following table summarizes the option/SAR activity under the Equity Incentive Plans as of

March 31 2010 and changes during the fiscal years

Weighted-

Shares Weighted- Average Aggregate

Under Average Remaining Intrinsic

Option/SARa Exercise Price Contractual Value

Options/SARs 000 Per Share Term $000

Outstanding at March 31 2007 4818 $11.37 2.37 $9674

Granted

Exercised 806 8.87

Forfeited or expired 690 17.82

Outstanding at March 31 2008 3322 $10.63 1.76 143

Granted 3450 6.51

Exercised 2.31

Forfeited or expired 1791 9.03

Outstanding at March 31 2009 4973 8.36 2.87

Granted 210 6.56

Exercised 92 6.27

Forfeited or expired 770 9.53

Outstanding at March 31 2010 4321 8.11 2.27 $4847

Exercisable at March 31 2010 2485 9.02 2.01 $2411

The total intrinsic value of options and SARs exercised during fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 was

$2.3 million $22 thousand and $76 thousand respectively

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In September 2003 the Companys Board of Directors adopted and the Companys shareholders

subsequently approved the Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP The ESPP is

designed to qualify for certain income tax benefits for employees under section 423 of the Internal Revenue

Code and has 4.4 million shares of Common Stock available for purchase by employees The plan offers

eligible employees the option to purchase Common Stock based on the average of the closing price of share
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of Common Stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market System for the ten trading days prior to the

individuals enrollment date or the purchase date Offering periods occur on May and each three month

period thereafter for an offering period of two years Purchases occur every three months The amount each

employee can purchase is limited to the lesser of 10% of pay or ii $6250 of stock value in any three

month period The ESPP expired on April 21 2009

In September 2008 the Companys Board of Directors adopted and the Companys shareholders

subsequently approved the Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc Employee Stock Purchase

Plan DMTC ESPP effective April 22 2009 The DMTC ESPP is designed to qualify for certain income

tax benefits for employees under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and has 2.5 million shares of

Common Stock available for purchase by employees The plan offers eligible employees the option to

purchase Common Stock based on the average of the closing price of share of Common Stock on the

NASDAQ Global Select Market System for the ten trading days prior to the individuals enrollment date or the

purchase date Offering periods occur on May and each three month period thereafter for an offering period

of two years Purchases occur every three months The amount each employee can purchase is limited to the

lesser of 10% of pay or ii $6250 of stock value in any three month period At March 31 2010

approximately 2.2 million shares are available for future issuances

The following table summarizes information about the ESPP share amounts in thousands

Weighted-

Average

Purchase Price

Shares Issued Range of Prices Per Share

Issued fiscal year 2008 341 $4.93 to $12.04 $6.33

Issued fiscal year 2009 502 3.13 to $5.39 $4.04

Issued fiscal year 2010 475 2.69 to $6.40 $2.88

The fair value of each ESPP offering is estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes option

valuation model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table Expected volatility is based on the

historical volatility of the Companys stock among other factors The expected life is based on the offering

period and purchase dates The risk-free rate is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of

grant

2008 2009 2010

Expected volatility 34% 66% 44% 84% 36% 69%

Weighted-average volatility 51% 69% 60%

Expected dividend yield 2.7% 7.4% 5.7% 13.7% 3.8% 9.7%

Average expected life in years 1.13 0.35 1.12

Risk-free interest rate 2.1% 5.0% 0.27% 2.1% 0.06% 1.2%

Weighted average grant date fair value of

ESPP granted $1.07 $0.56 $0.70

Other

Cash received from option and ESPP exercises under all share-based payment arrangements for fiscal

years 2008 2009 and 2010 was $4.3 million $2.1 million and $1.6 million respectively The actual tax

benefit realized for the tax deductions from option and SAR exercises including ESPP totaled $0.8 million

$40 thousand and $88 thousand respectively for fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 The Company also paid

$3.4 million $2.7 million and $0.8 million respectively in fiscal years 2008 2009 and 2010 for withholding

taxes for shares withheld for taxes upon the vesting of Stock Awards or the exercise of stock options and

SARs
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The Company is using previously purchased treasury shares for all net shares issued for option and SAR

exercises RSUs vesting restricted stock grants and ESPP purchases Shares may also be issued from

unissued share reserves The Companys active Buy-back Program is not related to this policy however

shares repurchased under that program will be available to be issued for shares issued under the Equity

Incentive Plans and ESPP

14 Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations for the fiscal years
ended March 31 2008

2009 and 2010 consisted of the following in thousands

2008 2009 2010

Current

Federal $7881 $1470 3654

State 1047 80 284

Foreign
15 102

______

$8943 1652 3939

Deferred

Federal 654 4488 2251

State 584 1061 859

Foreign ______
259 3383

70 $5808 273

$8873 $4156 3666

The components of income before income taxes for the fiscal years ended March 31 2008 2009 and

2010 consisted of the following in thousands

2008 2009 2010

U.S sources $21619 $l0864 $15533

Non-U.S sources 2511 2090 244

Total $19108 $l2954 $15777

The net amount credited to additional paid-in-capital for stock-based compensation deductions in excess

of financial statement deductions for fiscal year 2008 was $281 thousand For fiscal year 2009 and 2010 the

net amount debited to additional paid-in-capital for stock-based compensation deductions which were less

than financial statement deductions was $3.3 and $6.6 million respectively
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The total tax provision for continuing operations differs from the amount computed by applying the

federal statutory income tax rate of 35 percent to income loss before taxes as result of the following in

thousands

2008 2009 2010

Federal income taxes at statutory rate $6688 $4534 5522

Nondeductible meals and entertainment 520 500 418

Nondeductible stock-based compensation 450 663 142

Nondeductible executive compensation 256

Effect of tax on foreign exchange gain in foreign company 993

State income taxes net of federal benefit 1060 638 738

Other 218 313 122

Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets allocated

to income tax expense
373 1453 3288

$8873 $4156 3666

The tax effects of the temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities at

March 31 2009 and 2010 are presented below in thousands

2009 2010

Deferred tax assets attributable to

Net operating loss carryforwards 5432 4890

Foreign tax credit and carryforwards 101 116

Allowances and accruals 1745 6584

Stock-based compensation 11058 3863

Goodwill 1186 962

Depreciation 224 407

Capital loss carryforwards 1135 1149

Total gross deferred tax assets 20881 17971

Less valuation allowance 6027 2739

Net deferred tax assets 14854 15232

Deferred tax liabilities attributable to

Prepaids 339 429

Other 11

Total deferred tax liabilities 350 433

Net deferred income taxes $14504 $14799

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based on managements belief that it is more likely than not that

the tax benefits associated with temporary differences operating loss carryforwards and tax credits will be

utilized The Company assesses the recoverability of the deferred tax assets on an ongoing basis In making

this assessment the Company considers all positive and negative evidence including scheduled reversals of

deferred tax liabilities tax-planning strategies projected future taxable income and recent financial

performance

On March 31 2010 the Company concluded that its U.K subsidiarys remaining deferred tax asset

which was primarily related to net operating loss carryforwards is more likely than not to be realizable As

result the Company reversed the related valuation allowance resulting in $3.4 million income tax benefit
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As of March 31 2010 the Company had valuation allowance of $2.7 million to cover certain international

deferred tax assets capital loss carryforwards and certain state net operating losses that management believes

are not likely to be utilized The Company believes that the remaining deferred tax assets are more likely than

not realizable based on the estimates of future taxable income

As of March 31 2010 the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes

of approximately $10.5 million which may be used to offset future state taxable income through 2028 In

addition the Company has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of$l4.9 million of which approximately

$3.7 million expire through 2017 and approximately $11.2 million which may be carried forward indefinitely

The Company made net cash payments from continuing operations for income taxes in fiscal year 2008

2009 and 2010 of $9.5 million $3.3 million and $9.2 million respectively

Unrecognized tax benefits as of March31 2010 were approximately $0.6 million of which $0.5 million

would favorably affect the effective tax rate if recognized The Company does not expect the total amount of

unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31 2010 to change significantly in the next twelve months The

Company includes accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in other expenses

Reserves for interest and penalties are not significant

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows in

millions

2009 2010

Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year
1.3 0.7

Gross increases tax positions in prior periods 0.6

Settlements 1.0 0.1

Lapse of statute of limitations 0.2

Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year
$0.7 $0.6

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign

jurisdictions The Company is no longer subject to income tax examination by tax authorities for years before

fiscal year 2009 for U.S and U.K returns before fiscal year 2007 for India returns and for years before fiscal

year 2002 for state and local returns The IRS examination of the Companys fiscal year 2008 federal income

tax return was completed during fiscal year 2010 as was the fiscal year 2007 examination of the Companys

Indian subsidiary in India Adjustments from the various tax examinations did not have material effect on

the Companys operations The Company is currently under audit by the state of Illinois for fiscal years 2007

and 2008

15 Benefit Plans

401k Plan

The Company established defined contribution plan covering all of its U.S employees in February

1994 This plan is qualified under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 As of September 15

2004 all eligible employees below the level of vice president are eligible to receive matching contributions

when the Company in its discretion determines to make matching contributions As of January 2009 the

Company suspended matching contributions and no 401k match accrual was recorded for the twelve month

period ended December31 2009 On January 12010 the Company amended the plan to permit employees at

the level of Senior Director and Partner to be eligible to receive matching contributions and exclude Project

Flex Consultants from eligibility to receive matching contributions Effective January 12010 the Company

re-instated matching contributions for all eligible employees $0.6 million 40 1k match accrual was

recorded in fiscal year
2010
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The amount of the matching contribution is determined annually based on the Companys performance

and is immediately vested The total Company cash contributions to the plan for fiscal years 2008 2009 and

2010 were $0.7 million $0.7 million and $0 respectively

16 Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Objectives and Context

The Company operates internationally therefore its earnings cash flows and financial position are

exposed to foreign currency risk from foreign currency-denominated receivables and payables forecasted

service transactions and net investments in certain foreign operations These items are denominated in

various foreign currencies including the British Pound Sterling the Indian Rupee and the Euro

Management believes it is prudent to minimize the variability caused by foreign currency fluctuations

Management attempts to minimize foreign currency risk by pricing contracts in the respective local countrys

functional currency The Companys financial management continually monitors foreign currency fluctu

ations and considers the use of derivative instruments The Company does not use derivative instruments for

purposes other than hedging net investments in foreign subsidiaries As of March 31 2010 and during fiscal

years 2010 2009 and 2008 there were no open derivative instruments in place

Strategies

Approximately 10% of the Companys revenues and expenses are generated internationally in the

respective countries of its foreign subsidiaries and are typically denominated in the local currency of each

country Accordingly all foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional currency As result

management does not believe that its financial position is significantly exposed to foreign currency

fluctuations from foreign currency-denominated receivables and payables or forecasted service transactions

17 Related Party Transactions

It is the Companys policy to reimburse the business use of private airplanes in connection with

Company business including travel to and from client sites provided the cost of such travel is at or below

prevailing market rates for private or chartered aircraft In accordance with this policy the Chairman of the

Board of the Company was reimbursed $186 thousand in fiscal year 2008 and $10 thousand in fiscal year

2009 through the date that he owned private airplane There were no significant related party transactions in

fiscal year 2010

18 Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued statement which defines fair

value establishes framework for measuring fair value and requires expanded disclosures about fair value

measurements Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date three-level fair

value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value was established The hierarchy requires

entities to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs The three

levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other inputs that are

observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the

financial instrument
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Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are

significant to the fair value of the assets and liabilities This includes certain pricing models

discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs

The Companys financial assets that are measured at fair value on recurring basis consist of cash and

cash equivalents and restricted cash and are measured using Level inputs

19 Subsequent Event

On May 2010 the Board declared quarterly cash dividend of $0.09 per share of common stock

payable on June 11 2010 to shareholders of record at the close of business on June 2010

20 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

The following table presents the unaudited quarterly financial information for fiscal years
2009 and 2010

in thousands except per share amounts Quarterly income loss per share amounts are calculated

independently and may not sum to the full year totals or to net income loss per share amounts due to

rounding and changes in shares outstanding

Quarter Ended

June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Mar 31

Year Ended March 31 2009

Net revenue $38813 $40506 $36960 35887

Total revenue including reimbursable

expenses 43565 46157 43256 42001

Gross margin 8403 11027 9792 5048

Professional development and recruiting 2277 1719 1688 1032

Marketing and sales 642 1300 104 1057

Management and administrative support 6687 6327 5944 6889

Income loss from operations 1203 1965 2056 16428

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes 1049 2096 2400 16401

Income loss from continuing operations after

income taxes 720 521 14 10053

Per share of Common Stock basic 0.03 0.02 0.39

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.03 0.02 0.39

Income from discontinued operations net of

income taxes 400

Discontinued operations net of income taxes

Per share of Common Stock basic 0.02

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.02

Net income loss 720 521 14 9653

Per share of Common Stock basic 0.03 0.02 0.37

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.03 0.02 0.37
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Quarter Ended

June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31 Mar 31

Year Ended March 31 2010

Net revenue $37892 $43582 $45462 $50309

Total revenue including reimbursable expenses 44972 51667 53764 59541

Gross margin 9271 11972 14243 14833

Professional development and recruiting 706 1378 2011 1485

Marketing and sales 541 506 1217 1024

Management and administrative support 6103 6399 6609 6687

Income from operations 1921 3689 4406 5637

Income from continuing operations before income

taxes 1902 3705 4376 5794

Income from continuing operations after income

taxes 847 1828 2215 7221

Per share of Common Stock basic 0.03 0.07 0.08 0.27

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.03 0.07 0.08 0.26

Income from discontinued operations net of

income taxes 85 90 17 70

Discontinued operations net of income taxes

Per share of Common Stock basic 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Net income 932 1918 2232 7291

Per share of Common Stockbasic 0.03 0.07 0.08 0.27

Per share of Common Stock diluted 0.03 0.07 0.08 0.26
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The Stockholders and Board of Directors

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Diamond Management Tech

nology Consultants Inc and subsidiaries the Company as of March 31 2009 and 2010 and the related

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income loss stockholders equity and cash flows

for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31 2010 In connection with our audits of the

aforementioned consolidated financial statements we also audited the related financial statement schedule

This financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the schedule based on our audits

In our opinion such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the consolidated

financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

June 2010
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Column Column Column Column Column

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and End of

Description of Period Expenses Deductions Period

Amounts in thousands

For the Year Ended March 31 2010

Deducted from accounts receivable for uncollectible

accounts $566 $120 $209 $477

For the Year Ended March 31 2009

Deducted from accounts receivable for uncollectible

accounts $695 $159 $288 $566

For the Year Ended March 31 2008

Deducted from accounts receivable for uncollectible

accounts $573 $143 21 $695
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